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Key Figures
Full Year 2006 and 2003
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Total revenues 82.4 79.2 4%
Pro forma gross profit * 52.2 50.6 3%
Pro forma gross margin * 63% 64% 2)%
Loss from operations (13.1) (18.7) 30%
Net profit /(loss) 1.7 (20.2) 108%
Net profit /(loss} per share in Euro 0.01 0.06) 108% |
EBITDA ° (4.6) 10.3) 55%

Three months ended December 31, 2006 and 2005
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Total revenues

Pro forma gross profit *

Pro forma gross margin *

Loss from operations (5.2) {0.2) (3,051)%
Net loss {5.2) {1.7) . (206)%
Net loss per share in Euro (0.02) (0.01) _(206)%
EBITDA * {1.2) 1.7 170%

Cash, cash equivalents and other

investments in million Euro

! Restated by the sale of the Swedish business, please refer aiso to the e

E:age 9.

Gross profit presented excluding restructuring costs and impairment loss. )
¥ EBIT/EBITDA are non-defined non-GAAP measurements, please refer to the explanatantrhgtﬁpege ggl{#ear[(%@g to the letter of
figures, which are disptayed on page 64.
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Report to the shareholders

This report to the shareholders should be read in conjunction with the (consolidated) financial statements and
notes thereto. This report contains certain forward-looking statements and information relating to LYCOS
Europe based on the beliefs of LYCOS Europe as well as assumptions made by and information currently
available to LYCOS Europe. These statements include, but are not limited to, statements about LYCOS Europe’s
strategies, plans, objectives, expectations, intentions, revenues, expenditures and assumptions as well as
other statements contained in this report that are not historical facts, When used in this document, words such
as “"anticipate”, “belleve”, “estimate”, “expect”, “intend”, “plan™ and “project” and similar expressions, as
they relate to LYCOS Europe or its management, are intended to identify forward-looking statements. These
statements, which reflect LYCOS Europe’s current views with respect to future events, are not guarantees of
future performance and involve risks and uncertainties that are difficult to predict. Further, certain forward-
looking statements are based upon assumptions as to future events that may not prove to be accurate.
Investors are cautioned that forward-looking statements contained in this section involve both risk and
uncertainty. Several important factors cause actual results to differ materiaily from those anticipated by these
statements.

1  Message from the CEO

Dear shareholders,

In 2006 LYCOS Europe reached a major milestone in the Company’s history. LYCOS Europe achieved its main
financial target to finish this financial year with a positive net income on a full year basis. The net profit for
the perfod amounted to EUR 1.7 millien, which Is an improvement of 108 percent compared to the net loss of
2005 of EUR (20.2) million. This was mainly realized by the disposal of the Swedish Portal business which
resulted in a positive one-time gain of EUR 15.0 million, The disposal of the Swedish Access business, which
was approved by the Swedish competition authorities on January 4, 2007, was closed on January 12, 2007 and
will be accounted for in the first quarter 2007. These disposals were the result of a strategic decision to
achieve a better focus on the patd services and shopping and advertising based section of the Company.

The financial statements of LYCOS Europe were restated in line with the accounting principles of the Company.
The Swedish business, which is classified as discontinued operations, was excluded from the operating
activities. Lycos achieved to improve on revenues as well as on EBIT compared to the reporting period of the
previous year. Total revenues in 2006 (EUR B2.4 million} increased by 4 percent compared to 2005 (EUR 79.2
million} and 2006 EBIT improved by 30 percent (2006: EUR (13.1) million vs. 2005: EUR {18.7) million}).

To further strengthen the core businesses of LYCO5 Europe the Company decided to invest into its business unit
Shopping. With the acquisition of mentasys GmbH, a German shopping solution specialist, a highly awarded
technology was added to the LYCOS Europe network.

The combination of the mentasys expertise in backend solutions with the professional front-end technologtes of
LYCOS Europe’s one hundred percent subsidiary Pangora will leverage the competitiveness of this business unit
fn the international environment. This transaction doubles the shopping related development capacities and
innovation rate, which will secure the leading role of LYCOS Europe in the future development of the
eCommerce industry.

Furthermore LYCOS Europe continues to invest substantial amounts in the development of new and state-of-the
art Intemet services by leveraging the high level of creativity and expertise of its employees. Amongst many
other new, professional services especially the successful launch of the unique and innovative human search
engine, LYCOS iQ, proved the Company's strong position on the market of Internet service providers. The idea
to make the knowledge and expertise of thousands and potentially millions of people accessible to the online
community.will tead to increasing usage figures as well as completely new possibilities for the further
development of Internet search engines.

Based on these successes LYCOS Europe sees itself in a good position to increase its revenues going forward. In

the year to come the Company will work hard to bring many new and or enhanced products to market and
further improve its operating results.

Christoph Mohn KPMG Audit
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2  About LYCOS Europe and Overview 2006

Reach profitable growth by borderless innovative activities based on operational and technological
excellence in order to satisfy the shareholders”, customers” and employees’ interests,

After a year of restructuring and setting up a new company structure in 2005 the activities of LYCOS Europe in
2006 were focused on the renewal, stabilization and improvement of most services as well as on the
strengthening of the core businesses,

The Company focused on its strategy to start and develop several new, world class and state-of-the-art
products and several product updates. These innovations and further developments are based on the creativity
and the technical excellence of the team of LYCOS Europe’s product and marketing managers, developers and
technical support.

Understanding the whole range of LYCOS Europe services as a portfolio model, the intention is to launch
numerous new products of which some are expected to become successful. By this LYCOS Europe believes to
secure its position amongst the leading Internet service providers in Europe.

With over 31 million users (including third party sites) LYCOS Europe owns one of the four main launch
platforms in Europe and has the critical mass in sales and billing systems to offer hybrid models in the white
label business. In order to further grow the user base and make the LYCOS Europe network even more
attractive several new partnership agreements were closed in 2006 as well numerous initiatives were launched
to make especially the portal pages of LYCOS Europe more attractive,

LYCOS Europe is an innovator who combines strong creative skills with technical excelience

Following its strategy of launching several new, state-of-the-art services per year LYCOS Europe introduced not
only a new way of online searching, but also numerous other initiatives to improve the user experience ontine.
By doing so it strengthened fts core business units and underlined its leading role on the European Internet
market.

Already in the beginning of 2006 LYCOS Europe set a new standard for online searches in Europe. With an
innovative new search tool called LYCOS iQ, the Company proved its knowledge about users’ actual needs and
how to make perfect use of the current Web 2.0 trends, Based on LYCOS Europe’s success in the field of online
communities this service is a unique combination of a question and answer tool, a link library and a community
tool. The service was rotled out in Denmark, France, Germany, Sweden and the United Kingdom.

LYCOS iQ lets users pose complete questions directly to the LYCOS community instead of searching for
keywords. The advantage is that users get real and complete answers instead of a list with countless links to
websites that only refer to the keyword. The answers are provided by other individuals who have an expertise
in that particular field, or suggested from a database of saved responses and relevant bookmarks to other sites
that are stored in the LYCOS iQ database.

The idea behind LYCOS iQ is that everybody has a certain knowledge about something that cannot be found
anywhere else on the Internet, because it is based on experience. LYCOS iQ is a helpful tool if for example
somebody moves to a new city and needs to find a good doctor, a haircutter or the best Italian restaurant.

While the access to LYCOS iQ is free, answers can only be given by registered LYCOS iQ members In order to
secure the quality of the service, Users are motivated to share their knowledge by a ranking system, ranging
from “Student™ to “Einstein”, which displays the tevel of expertise someone has shown in a certain field
combined with the activity level as a community member.

The database of LYCOS iQ is also linked with the traditionat LYCOS Search so that answers are also suggested to
those users who use the traditional keyword search. Thereby also the results of the traditional search become
much more relevant,

Since introduction about 130,000 questions have been posted. Throughout the year the service has been
further developed e.g. by offering an intelligent browser toolbar and video answers. The toolbar allows asking
questions from anywhere in the Internet without going to the LYCOS iQ website. Video answers can make it

easfer to answer to certain questions because a picture sometimes can be more meaningful than a verbal
description.

At the same time the Shopping section has seen a lot of new developments. The one hundrdéRMGeAudit
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subsidiary Pangora GmbH, one of the leading providers of product search and comparison tebrgleslits frteining to the letter of

Europe, managed to develop and implement several new services in 2006 like a travel search and a fashion
search toot.

Page 5

meat poi (N




e e

e

Since the launch of LYCOS Travel Search it is offering already a comprehensive aggregation of flight searches
that makes it easy to compare flight availabilities and prices. Information on flights is provided from suppliers
like Air Berlin, ebookers, Germanwings, Opodo and Weglo. LYCOS Travel Search can be found in the LYCOS
Shopping section.

The LYCOS Fashion Search helps to find the latest must-haves at the best prices online. Moreover, this product
presents hints for fashion outlets and industrial selling. The first version of the Fashion Search is running on the
shopping portal eVita which belongs to the LYCOS Europe network since 2002.

The European shopping portal LYCOS Shopping was relaunched in the first quarter of 2006 with new features
like test reviews and top ten product lists, while shopping portal eVita was rolled out intemationally to France,
Italy and the United Kingdom in the third quarter of 2006. eVita and BuyCentral, both part of the LYCOS Europe
network, started their own affiliate program.

At the same time Pangora was able to extend its range of partnerships throughout Europe with agreements
with Axel Springer Yerlag in Germany (for the shopping sites of www.welt.de, www.welt-am-sonntag.de,
www.morgenpost.de), the German TV station Kabelt (for www.kabeleins.de) and GelbeSeiten (for local
product and shop searches). In France, new partnerships were closed with for example Le Monde (for their
shopping site}.

Also in Italy, Pangora was able to extend its portal portfolio with new partnerships with the local comparison
engines Costameno and Techeye. With these partnerships Pangora was able to offer its shep clients a presence
in shopping channels of portals like MSN, Repubblica and Mondadori and managed to double its reach.

In order to strengthen and extend this very important business unit LYCOS Europe acquired the shopping
solution specialist mentasys GmbH based in Karisruhe (Germany), which was announced on October 6, 2006.
This is an important investment in LYCOS Europe’s growth strategy in the Shopping section. While Pangora is a
specialist for shopping search technologies who has its strengths in the areas of front-end technologles, sales
and international business the newly acquired mentasys brings in 1ts expertise in back-end technologies,
product advisors and product data.

The mentasys technology was amongst others awarded with the German Innovation Award, Seal of Excellence,
German Internet Prize and others. It helps price comparison sites, online shops and portal partners to
significantly increase their traffic and revenues. By connecting sales networks with intelligent product advisors,
mentasys s able to offer retailers, manufacturers and portal operators a powerful package of guided selling
measures which will now be combined with the LYCOS Europe shopping solution portfolio.

With this transaction LYCOS Eurcpe was able to double the eCommerce development capacities to set the pace
for a higher rate of innovations, LYCOS Europe regards the transaction not only as a perfect move to leverage
its competitiveness especially against international eCommerce players but moreover to play a major role for
the future development of the eCommerce industry.

Communication and Communities invented and developed completely new and innovative versions of its
services throughout the year which are expected to be launched in 2007. The goal that LYCQS Europe has set in
this context is to bring unique, consumer focused services to market which reflect its high standards in
technology and creativity. —

i |
In the meantime the business unit Cemmunication and Communities still managed to update and further k2 !
develop the existing services. A new photo voting community service called “Sexy like us!” was added to the 5
service portfolio in the third quarter 2006. In this community users follow the trend of self-portrayal on the v
web and test the success of their looks directly in the community. A
1
Users above 16 years can upload a short profile with up to five pictures of themselves. Other users then rate F
these pictures on a scale from ten to one: hot or not. The Top 5 most popular men and women are presented Iy
on the community’s start page. Every user can decide if his photos are shown to the whole community and if he =
or she wants to be contacted by other users or not. The new service has also been integrated with other -

services ke the LYCOS Chat, JubiiBlogs and Love®LYCOS.

At the same time the LYCOS Chat, with its lively virtual community of about 5 rnillion registered members
Europe’s leading and most modemn web chat facility, continued its f1gh : pipality and especially child
abuse on the Internet also in 2006. Therefore LYCOS Chat extended it’s : ‘r ﬂ with Innocence in
Danger, the internaticnal child protection movement, Together both pdfene T mdpaciﬂifhat-
related information portal for parents and chitdren in Germany at www.sicher-chatte:

the Appendix pertaining to tha istter of
For the LYCOS Chat it was also a good success in 2006 to win the German portal T-Online and the mobile
service Yodafone live! as new partners. LYCOS Europe and T-Online agreed on a long-tﬂcmqwm the
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field of online communication services. According to this agreement LYCOS Europe started to run the chat
service of T-Online in 2006. The about 13 miltion users of T-Online (source: AGOF internet facts 2005-11) now
have the chance to go directly from their T-Ontine site into Europe’s leading chat run by LYCOS Europe. Here
they can take the advantage of about 3,000 functions and about 800 chat rooms. .

Also Vodafone live! chose to include our outstanding chat service on their online and mobile portals
(www.vodafonelive.de) in the second quarter of 2006. Hereby Vodafone live! users are given the possibility to
chat via their mobile devices - be it from mobile to PC or completely remote from mobile to mobile, The
service was launched as a premium offer by Vodafone Germany.

For those who like to share their daily life and interests with the world JubiiBlogs have been extended by the
feature of video and audio blogging. Bloggers can now record and upload MP3-format audio fites and video clips
as well as writing posts for their weblogs.

Clips can be created using a digital camera, PC-based audio recording software or a webcam to capture video
and seund. In cooperation with a partner company LYCOS Europe offers JubfiBloggers a free program which
helps them to edit together images, videos, sounds and text and upload them to their Blogs without any
technical know-how. Once posted, the clips are hosted and streamed by LYCOS Europe.

In terms of communication services the whole appearance and usability of LYCOS Mail has been updated in
2006. The improved usability concept includes a better visibility of the most important functions, a deep *
integration of other LYCOS Europe services tike the communities, portal contents and a professional search tool
as well as the so called Protek-On-System which includes leading security technologles like ,,Domain Keys* and
»oPF Sender Policy Framework". The 12-steps program includes a complete SS5L-encryption (Secure Socket
Layer) with highest security standards. Depending on the email service chosen, LYCOS Mail offers between 300
Megabyte (MB) and up to 10 Gigabyte (GB) web space.

Especially in the hosting and domain rames business LYCOS Europe was able to prove its expertise and high-
quality services again in 2006. A milestone was the introduction of the Top Level Domain “.eu” in the second
quarter 2006.

With an allocation quota of about 61 percent compared to the number of domains submitted to the EURid on
the event of the land rush phase of the new European domain ending on April 7, 2006, LYCOS Europe
demonstrated again its expertise in the field of domain registrations. With its subsidiary united-domains AG, an
official domain registrar, and its business unit LYCOS Web Hosting the European Intemet portal gained a
European market share of nearly 9 percent in the first days of the .eu domain.

The next land rush phase of the new Top Level Domain “.mobi” followed in the third quarter 2006. Here,
LYCOS Europe's one hundred percent subsidiary united-domains participated in the sunrise period and land rush
phase. Before the start of the general registration for this domain in October 2006, united-domains had already
collected several thousands of pre-registrations.

The business unit Hosting and Domain Names also introduced some further developments in 2006. The business
unit optimized its service portfolio and added a small hosting package called Active Start for private users.

With a personal domain name, 1,000 MB web space and a monthly bandwidth of 8 GB this package fulfils Y
exactly the needs of private and professional users who for example are just starting to build thelr online I
appearance. The package contains many of the professional features that LYCOS Web Hosting is famous for, [
like a cholice of LYCOS OneClickSite tools, a built-in email service for up to 20 accounts, php access and an easy £
web builder. o

For its mid-sized and large eShop packages LYCOS Web Hosting has integrated the PayPal payment solution in
the third quarter 2006. With this well-known payment solution LYCOS eShop owners can be sure to receive
their money and at the same time alsc offer their customers a secure and affordable payment service. &
Everybody can start selling on the web with LYCOS eShops, the eCommerce packages from LYCOS Web Hosting. i
Without any HTML knowledge anyone can set up a nice, professional online shop within minutes. o

Another successful service of LYCOS Europe is the LYCOS Wifi Sniffer, a %?!ﬁ E{Eq
Internet access. LYCOS Europe: has established itself as the European magief=idfy
Wifi Service, supported by LYCQS Europe's partner Spotigo, inctudes more than -"o 00

8,000
cities in 11 European countries. Thereof about 23,000 hotspots are located in Germanym United
Kingdom. ﬂmﬂ’ﬂ to the lstter of
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LYCOS Europe offers one of the main launch and marketing platforms in Europe

All the new product developments will continue to secure a large user base. The strategic approach of channel
extensions proved to be a successful reach driver in 2006. In total, the number of strategic partners in this field
has risen to 16 now including About.com, IMDb.com and Map24 as well as numerous local partners in France,
Germany and the United Kingdom.

In the third quarter of 2006 LYCOS Europe was able to sign a deal with the Intemet Movie Database (IMDb),
“Earth’s biggest movie database”, for the European inventory of the IMDb website. The sites of IMDb feature
cast lists, quotes, trivia, reviews, box office data, biographles and photography and other data regarding
cetebrities and movies. :

LYCOS Europe {s the sole agent of sales for IMDb covering Denmark, France, Germany, Italy, Norway, Spain,
Sweden, the Netherlands and the United Kingdom. According to Nielsen Netratings this partnership adds about
5 million unique users to the LYCOS network per month.

The successful partnership with About.com was also extended in 2006. About.com, the online source for
original consumer information and advice based in the United States, is a subsidiary of The New York Times
Company. Known as one of the main consumer information resources About.com is visited by millions of
European users every month, According to this sales agreement that was first closed in June 2003, LYCOS
Europe acts as a sales agent for the European inventory of About.com, covering Denmark, France, Germany,
ltaly, Spain, Sweden, the Netherlands and the United Kingdom.

LYCOS Europe focuses on its core competencies
Contrary to the investments in the eCommerce and shopping area LYCOS Europe made the strategic decision to
withdraw from the Swedish market and sold its Portal business and its Swedish Access business.

On September 29, 2006, LYCOS Europe sold the Swedish Portal business www.spray.se of its subsidiary Spray to
the media company Aller Svenska AB. The agreement between LYCOS Europe and Aller Svenska AB includes the
ongoing supply with a wide range of web services being developed by LYCOS Europe such as Spray Mail, Spray
Chat, and Spray Hosting in the future. In addition to the collaboration for these products both partners agreed
upon a co-operation for international online advertising sales. By doing so, spray.se will still be integrated into
LYCOS Europe’s pan-European sales network.

On November 23, 2006, LYCOS Europe sold its Swedish Access business which operated under the brand Spray
to Glocalnet Scandinavia AB. This transaction was approved by the Swedish competition authorities on January
4, 2007 and was closed on January 12, 2007. .

kbleb!
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| 3 Financial Results

(- The following financial information is presented on a pro forma basis following the presentation requirements

| of the Company’s previous GAAP, This should allow a further understanding of the current financial

i performance. In comparison to the presentation required according to the Intemational Financial Reporting
Standards as adopted by the EU {“IFRS"}, extraordinary items (e.g. restructuring costs) are excluded from the

g functions and are presented in separate line items,

t The Swedish Portal business and the Swedish Access business were sold on September 29, 2006, and November
23, 2006, respectively, and are classified as discontinued operations. As at December 31, 2008, the sale of the

o Swedish Access business was subject to approval of the Swedish competition authorities. Further for

! comparative purposes the 2005 financial statements have been restated.

-
" Revenues
. Advertising 35,658 38,279 9,802 10,557
Paid services and shopping 40,447 32,796 11,795 . 8,569
P Interconnect 5,906 6,893 1,560 1,525
{ | Licensing and other 369 1,278 231 278
Lo Total revenues 82,380 79,246 23,388 20,929
i | Pro fonma cost of revenues {30,199) (28,669 (8,879) (6,793)
; Pro forma gross profit 52,181 50,577 14,509 14,136
R Sales and marketing experses (24,198) (23,603) (6,920) (3,965)
i General and administrative expenses 21,525 {(20,393) . (5,229) (4,266)
L Research and development expenses 16,799 (18,511) (4,905) (3,743)
Other income 852 669 177 169
i Restructuring charges 140 {5,805) 35 (6)
¢ Amortization of intangibles (1,398) {1,388) {505) (347)
Impairment on property, plant and 0 {236) 0 (144)
! equipment
: Impairment on intangible assets {2,393 0 {2,393) 0
v Total operating expenses (65,319 (69,267) {19,740) (14,302)
{ ' Loss from operatlons (13,138) (18,690) (5,231) {166)
o Profit / (loss) from discontinued 12,772 (3,917) @ (2,223)
: operations
i
P Net profit / (loss) for the period 1,704 (20,236) (5,166} (1,730)

In the following discussion reference is made to the acquisition of mentasys GmbH on October 6, 2006. For
comparison purposes, where presented as adjusted for the acquisition, comparatives are calculated on the
basis, as if the acquisition would have had occurred on January 1, 2005.

Revenues
Revenues from paid services and shopping showed good growth rates an S Europe’s enhanced

efforts to extend its paid services offer. Advertising revenues contributed with 43 mmmmes
with 49 ent to LYCOS Europe’s total rev in th riod ended D .
and shopping perc urop o enues in the pe eﬂ!ﬁk ing to the § of

on e

Amounting to EUR B82.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2006, LYCOS Europe's revenues increased by

4 percent compared to the year ended December 31, 2005, Adjusted for mentasys Gmb 1ﬁEgmlred in
) 2006, revenues increased by 6 percent.
i Initisls for identifiction
! purptses
KPMG Accountants N.V.
‘ LYCOS
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Advertising revenues for the year ended December 31, 20056, decreased by 7 percent compared to the year
ended December 31, 2005.

Paid services and shopping for the year ended December 31, 2006, increased by 23 percent compared to the
year ended December 31, 2005. The increase of paid services and shopping is the result of the continuous
growth in existing products and the successful launch of .eu domains. Adjusted for the acquisition made in
2006 paid services and shopping revenues increased by 28 percent.

Interconnect revenues for the year ended December 31, 2006, decreased by 14 percent compared to the year
ended December 31, 2005. This decrease is mainly driven by the price drop in the German access market.

Barter revenues represented less than 5 percent of net group revenues during those periods,

Revenues for the three months ended December 31, 2006, of EUR 23.4 million, increased by 12 percent
compared to revenues of EUR 20.9 mitlion for the three months ended December 31, 2005. Adjusted for the
acquisition of mentasys GmbH, revenues for the three months ended December 31, 2006, increased by 8
percent compared to the three months ended December 31, 2005.

Cost of Revenues
Cost of revenues increased from EUR 28.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2005, to EUR 30.2 million
for year ended December 31, 2006.

The gross margin decreased to 62 percent for three months ended December 31, 2006, compared to 68 percent
for the three months ended December 31, 2005.

Sales and Marketing

Sales and marketing expenses amounted to EUR 24.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2006, which is an
increase of 3 percent compared to sales and marketing expenses of EUR 23.6 million for the year ended
December 31, 2005.

In the three months ended December 31, 2006, sales and marketing expenses amounted to EUR 6.9 million
compared to EUR 6.0 million for the three months ended December 31, 2005.

General and Administration

General and administrative expenses increased from EUR 20.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2005 to
EUR 21,5 million for year ended December 31, 2006. Adjusted for the acquisition made during 2006, general
and administrative expenses increased by 4 percent only.

General and administrative expenses for the three months ended December 31, 2006, increased by 23 percent
compared to the same period last year.

Research and Development

Costs incurred for research and product development amounted to EUR 16.8 million for year ended December
31, 2006, compared to EUR 18.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2005. This decrease of 9 percent is
primarily due to the cost reduction program of LYCOS Europe.

Research and development costs increased from EUR 3.7 million for the three months ended December 31,
7005, to EUR 4.9 million for the three months ended December 31, 2006. This increase reflects the ongoing
commitment to detiver new products during 2007 and the additional development capacities for mentasys.

Amortization of Intangibles

Amortization expenses amounting to EUR 1.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2006 are mainly related
to amortization of intangible assets excluding goodwill identified in the purchase price accounting of united-
domains AG, Pangora SAS and mentasys GmbH.

Amortization expenses for the three months ended December 31, 2006 are amounting to EUR 0.5 million.

EBITDA

EBITDA is not a measure recognized by [FRS. This and similar measur different companies for
differing purposes and are often calculated fn ways that reflect the hs of those companies. See
page 64 for LYCOS Europe’s definition of the EBITDA result. KPMG Audit
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The EBITDA result decreased from EUR 1.7 million for the three months ended December 31, 2005, to EUR (1.2)
million for the three months ended December 31, 2006.

Financing

The total amount for cash and cash equivalents, short-term and long-term deposits decreased from EUR 105.1
million on December 31, 2005, to EUR 93.3 million on December 31, 2006. During the year ended December 31,
2006, LYCOS Europe used EUR 0.5 million cash in operating activities, which is an improvement of 95 percent
compared to EUR 9.7 million used during the year ended December 31, 2005. In addition, during the year
ended December 31, 2006, an amount of EUR 2.1 million was used for the acquisition of property, plant,
equipment and intangible assets. The net cash received for the sale of the Swedish Portal business of LYCOS
Europe amounted to EUR 16.6 million.

LYCOS Europe focuses on reducing its operating loss and will continue to do so, expecting no additional funding
requirement until becoming cash-flow positive.

4 The Share

Shareholder Structure

LYCOS Europe’s legal shareholder structure as at December 31, 2006, fs as follows: LE Holding Corp. (32.1
percent}, Bertelsmann Intemet Holding GmbH / Fireball Internet GmbH / Jahr Vermogensverwaltungs GmbH
and Co. KG (20.0 percent), Christoph Mohn Internet Holding GmbH (12.1 percent), LYCOS Europe N.V, [shares
held as treasury shares] (0.2 percent), and Free Float (35.6 percent) including Amber Master Fund SPC.

As at December 31, 2006, the total number of shares outstanding is 311,576,344, excluding the treasury shares.

Stock Price Performance
LYCOS Europe’s Stock Price Performance Compared to Technology All Share Index

pEC 4

100l

H-.u <, e
= Licow Dorers

LYCOS Europe's share price faced a non satisfying development In the course of the year 2006. The share price ()
dropped by 19.5 percent from EUR 1,13 (Frankfurt Stock Exchange, opening price January 2, 2006) to EUR 0.91 )
{Frankfurt Stock Exchange, closing price December 29, 2006) and therefore could not compete with the =)
Technology All Share Index which rose by 23.2 percent in the same period.

KPMG Audit

the Appendix partaining to the letter of

LYCOS turope had 714 employees at the end of 2006 compared to 688 employees at the end of 2005, As
aforementioned, LYCOS Europe sold its Swedish Portal and Access business, both businﬁmlzmen by its

subsidiary Spray Network AB with headquarters in Stockholm/Sweden. %
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As at December 31, 2006, the sale of the Swedish Access business was subject to approval by the Swedish
competition authorities. 21 employees of the total staff are related to this line of business.

From all employees 55 percent are located in Germany, 27 percent in Armenia, 7 percent {n France and
11 percent in offices located in Denmark, Italy, the Netherlands, Sweden and the United Kingdom,

LYCOS Europe has a team of outstanding creative and technical experienced employees. The base is the
Company's corporate culture, which is dominated by mutual respect and excitement over future tasks, The
Company offers a professional environment for all employees with a focus on the respect for the differences in
the cultures. With the necessary resources in place, the employees can reach the goals and utilize their
potential. The recognition of the team effort as well as the single performance is of high importance to the
Company.

6 Corporate Governance

LYCOS Europe N.V. endorses the importance of good corporate governance, which is understood to include
honest and transparent acting on the part of management, correct supervision of this corporate governance
and accepting responsibility for the supervision carried out. This section of the Company’s annual report
provides an outline of its corporate governance structure. LYCOS Europe applies the Dutch Corporate
Governance Code, which was published by the Corporate Governance Commission on December 9, 2003, to
most points. Deviations are specifically discussed and explained in the subsection entitled “Deviations from the
Dutch Corporate Governance Code™ below.

LYCOS Europe’s Management Board and Supervisory Board are responsible for weighing up the interests of the
Company’s customers, suppliers, employees and capital providers among with interests of the shareholders. In
doing this LYCOS Europe’s boards strive to create shareholder value in the long term.

The corporate governance principles LYCOS Europe employs are deposited in the Company's Articles of
Association, the By-Laws of its Management Board, the By-Laws of its Supervisory Board and other documents.
LYCOS Europe has a written code of business principles and a written whistleblowing poticy. All of said
documents and other information that LYCOS Europe is required to publish or deposit pursuant to provisions of
company law and securities law applicable to the Company are posted on a separate corporate governance
section on the Company’s website.

During the Company’s 2005 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders its corporate governance policy has been
discussed and its Management Board and Supervisory Board have given account accordingly. Substantial future
changes to LYCOS Europe’s corporate governance structure, if any, will be submitted to the General Meeting of
Shareholders for discussion.

During 2006 a few changes were made to the Terms of Reference of the Audit Committee. The By-Laws of the
Supervisory Board are in the process of being changed as well. Given the minor importance of these changes,
they are not further discussed in this report.

Management Board

Role and procedure

Management responsibilities

The management responsibility is vested in the Company's Management Board. This includes among other
things responsibility for determining and achieving the Company’s objectives, strategy and policies and the
development of results. LYCOS Europe’s Management Board reports on these matters to its Supervisory Board
and to the General Meeting of Shareholders. In discharging its role, LYCOS Europe's Management Board focuses
on the Company’s interests taking into consideration the interests of its stakeholders. LYCOS Europe’s
Management Board provides its Supervisory Board with all the information necessary for the exercise of its

duties in a timely fashion.

LYCOS Europe’s Management Board is responsible for complying with all rejes] y,-llafz fol

managing the risks assoclated with the Company's activities and its finan g, ThE Maflagement Board reports
on these matters to the Supervisory Board and the Audit Committee and discusses the in{¥m¥ Audit
management and control systems with these bodies.
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Composition and appointment

Christoph Mohn, the Company's Chief Executive Officer ("CEQ™), currently is the sole member of the
Management Board. Christoph Mohn has been appointed for an indefinite period of time and LYCOS Europe is of
the opinion that this cannot be changed unilaterally by the Company into a fixed-term position. New members
of the Management Board are expected to be appeinted for a term of four years (without prejudice to the
possibility of reappointment), provided market circumstances so permit.

Pursuant to the Company's Articles of Association LYCOS Europe’s Management Board must consist of one, two
or three members who are appointed by the Company’s General Meeting of Sharehelders. The meeting of
holders of LYCOS Europe’s class AB shares have the right to make a binding nomination for filling one seat on
the Company's Management Board. The person appointed in this seat is referred to as a managing director AB.
Christoph Mohn s a managing director AB. The meeting of holders of LYCOS Europe’s class AA shares may
determine that a second Management Board member must be appointed and if so determined, it will have the
right to make a binding nomination with respect to the second seat. The person appointed in that seat would
be referred to as a managing director AA. If the meeting of holders of class AA shares has determined that
there must be a managing director AA, the meeting of holders of class AB shares may determine that the
Management Board shall consist of three managing directors. In that case, the third managing director will
neither be a managing director AA nor a managing director AB and in respect of this seat no binding nomination
rights exist. A nomination for appointment of a managing director AA or AB prepared by the sharcholders of the
relevant class will be binding if consisting of at least two candidates, The General Meeting of Shareholders can
override the binding nature of such nomination only by a two-thirds majority representing more than one-hatf
of the Company’s issued share capital.

In October 2006, Bertelsmann Internet Holding GmbH (BIH) and Christoph Mohn Internet Holding GmbH (CMIH),
owning 39,27 percent and 37,73 percent respectively of all class AB shares outstanding and both also holding a
number of class B shares, informed the Company of their mutual agreement that (i) with respect to
nomination, appointment and removal of the CEO and Supervisory Board members AB, BiH will exercise its
voting rights in accordance with instructions given by CMIH; and (ii) with respect to the approval of capital
measures such as the issue of share options and convertible loan notes, they will act as if BIH had a veto right,

LYCOS Europe's Management Board must appoint a Chief Financial Officer ("CFO"} whether or not from among
its members, an the proposal of the CEO. However, if the Management Board consists of three members and
provided the person who is neither a managing director AA nor a managing director AB s nominated by the
CEQ, that person shall be the CFO. During 2006 LYCOS Europe’s CFO was not a member of the Management
Board and therefore acted under the responsibility of the Management Board. The CFO is among other things
responsible for formulating the Company’s financial strategy, overseeing and ensuring the integrity of its
accounts and its financial reporting.

Mrs. Lydla Lux-Schmitt, who was the Company's CFO but not a member of the Management Board, left the
Company as of September 30, 2006. Since then, the functions of the CFO have been temporarily assumed by
the CEO.

Remuneration

Amount and composition of the remuneration

LYCOS Europe places a high importance on attracting and retaining qualified directors and personnel, whilst
safeguarding and promoting the Company’s medium- and long-term fnterests. The Remuneration Policy for
members of the Company’s Management Board is reflective thereof. It is designed to support LYCOS Europe’s
strategy for value creation and shareholder alignment and to strengthen the Company's Management Board
members’ commitment.

The Remuneration Policy for the members of LYCOS Europe’s Management Board includes fixed and variable
components. The ownership of shares in the Company’s capital by Management Board members is for long-term
fnvestment.

An overview of the remuneration of Christoph Mohn, who is currently LYCOS Europe’s sole Management Board
member, can be found on page 58.

Determination and disclosure of remuneration

LYCOS Europe’s current Remuneration Policy that has been discussed and adopted by fts m’@% eral
Meeting of Shareholders can be found on page 68. Subsequently, every material amendm

Remuneration Policy will also be submitted to the General Meeting of Shareholders.
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Conflicts of interest

Any member of LYCOS Europe’s Management Board is required to immediately report any conflict of interest or
potential conflict of interest that is of material significance to the Company or to the member of the
Management Board to the Chairman of the Supervisory Board. Where the Supervisory Board decides that a
particular transaction must be treated as a transaction in which a Management Board member has a conflict of
interest, it shall also decide on the internal decision-making process to be followed in respect thereof. All
transactions in which there are conflicts of interest with a Management Board member are agreed on arm's
length conditions. Decisions to engage in transactions in which conflicting interests of a Management Board
member are involved, which are of material significance to LYCOS Europe and/or to the Management Board
member require the approval of the Supervisory Board. In the event of a conflict of interest between LYCOS
Europe and a Management Board member, the Company shall be represented by the person or persons
designated for such purpose by the Supervisory Board (which may but need not be the Management Board
member concerned), save when one or more other persons were previously designated by the General Meeting
of Shareholders for that purpose,

Acknowledging that Christoph Mohn has a personal financial interest in Bertelsmann AG, LYCOS Europe's
Supervisory Board closely monitors the Company’s dealings with Bertelsmann and its affiliates.

Supervisory Board

Tasks and procedure

LYCOS Europe’s Supervisory Board's responsibility is to supervise the policy of the Company’s Management
Board and the general affairs of LYCOS Europe and its business as well as to assist the Company’s Management
Board by providing advice. In doing so, the Supervisory Board is guided by the Company’s interests and takes
into account the relevant interests of its stakeholders. The Supervisory Board is responsible for the quality of
its own functioning.

Independence

Composition and appointment

The members of the Supervisory Board are appointed by the General Meeting of Shareholders for a period of
four years. As a general rule, LYCOS Europe’s Supervisory Board members may serve a maximum of three terms
of four years on the Supervisory Board.

LYCQS Europe’s Supervisory Board currently consists of six members, being three supervisory directors AA and
three supervisory directors AB, The meeting of holders of the Company's class AA shares have the right to make
binding nominations for the appointment of supervisory directors AA and the meeting of holders of the
Company’s class AB shares have the right to make binding nominations for the appointment of supervisory
directors AB. A nomination for appointment of a supervisory director AA or AB made up by the shareholders of
the relevant class will be binding if consisting of at least two candidates. The General Meeting of Shareholders
can override the binding nature of such nomination only by a two-thirds majority representing more than one-
half of the issued share capital.

The expertise and composition requirements of LYCOS Europe’s Supervisory Board are laid down in a
Supervisory Board Profile which is annexed to the By-Laws of the Company's Supervisory Board. The Supervisory
Board is responsible for promoting, within the limits of its powers, that the size of LYCOS Europe’s Supervisory
Board is at all times such that the Supervisory Board as a whole can perform its duties effectively and
responsibly and that each individual member of the Company’s Supervisory Board is able to make a
contribution by his or her specific qualities.

The composition of LYCOS Europe’s Supervisory Board is such that its members can act critically and
independently of one another, and of the management and any particular interest, acknowledging, however,
that under the Company’s Articles of Association the meeting of holders of its class AA shares and the meeting
of holders of its class AB shares have special nomination rights with respect to the appointment of Supervisory
Board members and provided that LYCOS Europe does bear certain characteristics of a joint venture between
the holders of its class AA and AB shares justifying that the Company’s Supervisory Board members are selected
from persons occupying functions (as a director, officer or otherwise) with a h or AB shares or
parties related thereto.

Under the criteria of the Dutch Corporate Governance Code, onty one of LYCOS Europe’s Smﬁqﬁ%&_I !t
riag to the letter of

members qualifies as independent. Messrs. Rodriguez-Vina, Rovira de Ossé and Velo Puig-Durail,
Europe’s supervisory directors AA, are not independent as they are directors or officers of Telifgnica SA, which
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is the parent of the Company that owns LYCOS Europe’s class AA shares, representing over 10 percent of the
Company’s share capital. Mr. Mateu Isturiz, who was a supervisory director AA, was an officer of Telefénica SA
until Novemnber 2005 and is currently employed by Altadis SA. Mr. Richter, one of LYCOS Europe’s supervisory
directors AB and the Chairman of the Supervisory Board, was formerly employed with and has a business
relationship with Bertelsmann AG, which is the parent of the majority holder of LYCOS Europe’s class AB
shares, representing over 10 percent of the Company’s share capital. Mr. Buch, also a supervisory director AB,
is employed with an affiliate of Bertelsmann AG. Mr. Bohnert, who is also a supervisory director AB, is
independent, notwithstanding the fact that he was the advisor to a company which in the past was an affiliate
of Bertelsmann AG and notwithstanding the fact that he is a partner of a law firm of which other partners do
certain work for Bertelsmann AG or its affiliates.

Role of the Chairman of the Supervisory Board and the Company Secretary
The Chairman and Vice Chafrman (if any) of LYCOS Europe’s Supervisory Board are appointed by the meeting of
holders of the Company’s class AB shares. The Chalrman is not a former member of the Management Board.

The duties of the Chairman of LYCOS Europe’s Supervisory Board include preparing the agenda and chairing
Supervisory Board meetings, monitoring the satisfactory functioning of the Supervisory Board and its
Committees, arranging the adequate provision of information to the Supervisory Board members, ensuring that
there is sufficient time for making decisions, being the main contact point on behalf of the Supervisory Board
for the Management Board, initfating the evaluation of the functioning of the Supervisory Board and the
Management Board and as Chairman ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of General Meetings of
Shareholders. The Chairman of the Supervisory Board is assisted by the Company Secretary who is as such also
the secretary of the Supervisory Board.

Composition and role of the Committees of the Supervisory Board

Without prejudice to its own responsibility, LYCOS Europe’s Supervisory Board has established an Audit
Committee and a Remuneration Committee, each consisting of three members of the Supervisory Board. The
task of these Committees primarily is to prepare the decision-making of the Supervisory Board.

In view of the binding nomination rights of the holders of LYCOS Europe’s class AA and AB shares regarding
appointments to the Company’s Supervisory Board and Management Board, the Supervisory Board has not
established and does not intend to establish a nomination cornmittee.

Audit Committee

The purpose of the Audit Committee is to assist LYCOS Europe’s Supervisory Board on the execution of its
supervisory responsibility concemning among other things the Company’s performance, policy and procedures in
the area of financial administration and financial reporting and internal control systems, the integrity of the
financial reports and the evaluation and independence of the Company’s external auditor.

The Audit Committee shall decide if and when LYCOS Europe’s CEO, its CFO and/or its external auditor should
attend its meetings. In addition, independent experts may be fovited to attend meetings of the Audit
Committee. Each member of the Supervisory Board may attend meetings of the Audit Committee. The Audit
Committee may require any of LYCOS Europe’s officers or employees, its external legal advisers or its extemnal
auditor to attend a meeting of the Audit Committee or to consult with members or advisers of the Audit
Committee. When need arises, the external auditor may request the Chairman of the Audit Committee to be
allowed to attend a meeting of the Audit Committee,

Remuneration Committee

The purpose of the Remuneration Committee is to assist LYCOS Europe’s Supervisory Board with, among other
things, resotving on the compensation of the CEC and any other Management Board members, if appointed, and
the proposal for and regular review of the remuneration policy.

Conflicts of interests

Any member of LYCOS Europe’s Supervisory Board is required to immediately report any conflict of interest or
potential conflict of interest that is of material significance to the Company or to the member of the
Supervisory Board concermed to the Chafrman of the Supervisory Board. Where the Supervisory Board decides
that a particular transaction must be treated as a transaction in whicha S ryioard member has a
conflict of interest, it will also decide on the internal decision-making prof Nlowed in respect
thereof. All transactions in which there are conflicts of fnterest with a Sufielt Ayaiegreed

on arm’s length conditions. Decisions to engage in transactions in which conflicting inte %éﬂw to th letter of
the s0ry

Board member are involved, which are of material significance to LYCOS Europe and/or to
Board member concerned require the approval of the Company’s Supervisory Board.
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LYCOS Europe’s Supervisory Board is also responsible for decision-making concerning the handling of conflicts
of interest of members of the Management Board, iarge shareholders and the external auditor in relation to the
Company. ’

Acknowledging that all members but one of LYCOS Europe’s Supervisory Board have a relationship with either
Tetefonica SA, or affiliates thereof, or Bertelsmann AG, or affiliates thereof, LYCOS Europe's Supervisory Board
closely monitors the Company’s dealings with Telefénica SA, Bertelsmann AG and their respective affiliates.

Remuneration

The remuneration of the members of the Supervisory Board, if any, is determined by the General Meeting of
Shareholders. No shares and/or rights to shares in LYCOS Europe’s capital are granted to Supervisory Board
members by way of remuneration.

The shareholders and the general meeting of shareholders

Powers

Good corporate governance assumes full participation of shareholders in the decision-making process in the
General Meeting of Shareholders. it is in the Company’s interest that as many shareholders as possible
participate in the decision-making process in the General Meeting of Shareholders and that the General
Meeting of Shareholders plays a full role in the system of LYCOS Europe’s “checks and balances”.

The most important powers of LYCOS Europe's General Meeting of Shareholders are:

adoption of the Company’s Dutch statutory annual accounts;

e approval of dividends;

e granting release from liability to the Company’s Management Board and Supervisory Board members;

s appointment, suspension and removal of the Company’s Management Board and Supervisory Board
members;

¢ adoption of a policy on remuneration of the Company’s Management Board members and determination of
the remuneration of its Supervisory Board members;
appointment and removal of the external auditor;
approval of decisfons of the Company’s Management Board on significant changes to LYCOS Europe’s
identity or character (within the meaning of those terms under Section 2:107a of the Dutch Civil Code) or
the identity or character of LYCOS Europe’s business, in any case concerning the transfer of (nearty) the
Company's entire business, the entering into or terminating of joint ventures which are of fundamentalt
fmportance to LYCOS Europe and the acquiring or disposing of participations the value of which equals or
exceeds one third of the sum of the Company's assets according to its latest adopted consolidated balance
sheet;

e delegation to the Company’s Management Board of the power to issue shares in the Company’s capital, it
being understood that the exercise of such delegated power by the Management Board is subject to
approval by the Supervisory Board;

¢ authorization of the Company's Management Board to make LYCOS Europe repurchase shares in its own
capital, it being understood that upon authorization the exercise of such power by the Management Board
is subject to approval by the Supervisory Board; and

e approval of any amendments to the Company's Articles of Association. e

.l:?u'.. .

Furthermore, any substantial modification to LYCOS Europe’s corporate governance structure and its policy on v

reserves and dividends will be presented to the General Meeting of Shareholders for discussion. o

(1]
The right to place an item on the agenda |
Shareholders who, alone or jointly, represent at least one percent of the issued capital or a shareholding, B d
alone or jointly, at least worth EUR 50,000,000 according to the official price list of any stock exchange, shall =
have the right to request to the Management Board or the Supervisory Board that items be placed on the £
agenda of the General Meeting of Shareholders. These requests will be honored by the Management Board or ]
the Supervisory Board under the conditions: (1) that important company interests do not dictate otherwise; and "'
(2) that the request is received by the CEO or the Chairman of the Sy in writing at least 60 days
before the date of the General Meeting of Shareholders.

KPMG Audit
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Provision of information

LYCOS Europe informs all shareholders and other parties within the financial market equally and simultaneously
about affairs that could influence the share price. The contacts between the Management Board on the one
hand and the press, financial analysts and individual investors on the other hand are carefully handled and
structured and LYCOS Eurcpe does not carry out any dealings that affect the independence of the analysts with
regard to the Company and vice versa.

LYCOS Europe’s Management Board and Supervisory Board must provide the General Meeting of Shareholders
with all relevant information that it needs for the exercise of its powers. If, during a General Meeting of
Shareholders, information that could affect the share price is provided or answering shareholders' questions
leads to such sensitive information being provided, this information shall be made public immediatetly.

The audit of the financial reporting and the position of the external auditor

Financial reporting

LYCOS Europe’s Management Board is responsible for the quality and completeness of the financial information
that is made public. The Company's Supervisory Board must see to it that the Management Board fulfils this
responsibility.

Role, appointment, remuneration and assessment of the functioning of the external auditor

LYCOS Europe’s external auditor is appointed by the Company’s General Meeting of Shareholders each year to
audit the annual accounts for the then-current financial year. A nomination for appointment Is made by LYCOS
Europe’s Supervisory Board, for which purpose both the Audit Committee and the Management Board advice
the Supervisory Board. The remuneration for the extemnal auditor will forthwith be approved by LYCOS
Europe's Supervisory Board on the proposal of the Audit Committee after consultation with the Management
Board. The Management Board and the Audit Committee have thoroughly assessed the extemal auditor in Z005.
Their conclusions were satisfactory and discussed in the Supervisory Board.

Relationship and communication of the external auditor with LYCOS Europe’s corporate bodies

The external auditor shall in any event attend the meetings of each of the Supervisory Board and the Audit
Committee once a year and may request the Chairman of the Audit Committee to attend any further meetings
of the Audit Committee if and when he deems appropriate. The external auditor reports his findings conceming
the audit of the financial statements to the Management Board, the Supemsory Board and the Audit
Committee.

Deviations from the Dutch Corporate Governance Code

As indicated above, LYCOS Europe endorses the importance of good corporate governance and applies the
Dutch Corporate Governance Code to most points. Deviation from certain code provisions follows from or is
justified by specific aspects of LYCOS Europe’s legal structure, shareholder structure, business and other
circumstances, including but not limited to the following aspects in which LYCOS Europe differs from most
other Dutch listed companies: (i} LYCOS Europe was founded and in certain respects still operates as a joint
venture company between two (groups of) large shareholders; and (ii) LYCOS Europe is a company whose
registered office is in the Netherlands, but (part of) whose shares are solely listed in the German Prime
Standard and on the French Nouveau Marché, and not on any Dutch stock exchange. As a consequence of the
latter LYCOS Europe believes there are instances where non-compliance with code provisions specific to the
Dutch environment is justified.

Below is an overview of the matters where LYCOS Europe deviates from the best practice provisions of the
Dutch Corporate Governance Code (numbers in brackets below refer to the numbers of the retevant code
provisions):

e  LYCOS Europe’s current CEO, Mr, Mohn, has been appointed for an indefinite period of time and the
Company believes this cannot be unilaterally changed. Future appointments to the Management Board,
however, are expected to be made in accordance with the relevant code provisions. The variable part of
Mr. Mohn's remuneration for 2006 has not contained a long-term incentive, based on the long-term
alignment of interests between him and LYCOS Eutope deriving from his personal investment {through a
personal holding) in the Company as a shareholder. Dependi :Em}%‘ﬁ? mstances, in the event of
dismissal, termination payments from LYCOS Europe to Mr. ged one year's salary as Mr. Mohn
is retained by a subsidiary of LYCOS Europe under a German law employmel(Ri@rildiey termination

payments will therefore be subject to German law, regulation and practlcqmmﬁm%fmmw
contracts. {il.1.1; 11.2; 1.2.7)
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+ In the event of conflicts of interest between LYCOS Europe and members of its Management Board or
Supervisory Board, the Company’s Supervisory Board will decide on the internal decision-making process to
be followed in respect thereof. This does not necessarily mean that the relevant board member will be
excluded from taking part in a discussion and/er deciston-making on the relevant subject. Also, LYCOS
Europe does not acknowledge that transactions with Bertelsmann or Telefonica or their respective
affiliates that are of minor importance to LYCOS Europe must per se be treated as transactions involving
conflicts of interests. (I1.3.2; I1.3.3; [11.6,1; 11..6.2)

e  All of LYCOS Europe’s Supervisory Board members but one are selected from persons occupying functions |
{as a director, officer or otherwise) or being otherwise engaged with a holder of class AA or AB shares or |
parties related thereto. These Supervisory Board members do therefore not qualify as "independent” within |
the meaning of the relevant code provisions; however, otherwise said Supervisory Board members meet all |
criteria for independence set forth in the relevant code provisions (11.2.1; 111.2.2; 111.3.2; 111.5.1; HI.5.7) !

o Nominations for appointments to LYCOS Europe's Management Board and Supervisory Board are made by
the holders of the Company’s class AA shares or the holders of its class AB shares. Under the Company’s
Articles of Association, said classes of shareholders hold the power to make up binding nominations with
respect to managing and supervisory directors AA and AB respectively, as discussed in the above
subsections of this report in more detail. LYCOS Europe’s Supervisory Board is not charged with making
such nominations and has not established a nominations committee. {1lI.5; lil.5.13; IV.1.1)

e LYCOS Europe does not require its Management Board and Supervisory Board members to give periodic
notice to the Company of changes in their holdings in securities in Dutch listed companies. LYCOS Europe
believes the relevant code provisions to be quite specific to the Netherlands and that deviation is justified
by the Company's international character. (I1.2.6; HI.7.3)

e LYCOS Europe does not have an internal auditor function of its own which the Company believes is justified
given the stze and comptexity of its business and the duties and involvement of its external auditors.

(v.3.1) \

In addition, certain of LYCOS Europe’s policies deviate from the formal text of specific provisions of the Dutch
Corporate Governance Code where the Company does believe, however, that its policies are in conformity with
the spirit of such code provisions, Those differences are apparent from textuat differences between certain
provisions in the By-Laws of LYCOS Europe’s Management Board and Supervisory Board and Committee Terms of
Reference on the one hand and best practice provisions in the Dutch Corporate Govemance Code on the other,
In the case of such differences, the text of said By-Laws and Terms of Reference prevails. LYCOS Europe
believes such differences do not require any further explanation in this annual report and such differences are
not further discussed herein,

7  Risk Management

The Management Board is of the opinion that the intemal risk management and control systems are adequate
and effective for a company of the size and maturity of LYCOS Europe.

The German law on Control and Transparency in Corporations (KonTraG) and the Dutch Corporate Governance

Code specifies the legal obligations pertaining to corporate risk management. Based on these requirements in )
Germany and the Netherlands, LYCOS Europe maintains a comprehensive risk management system. The I
Management Board is responsible to ensure that the Company complies with all relevant legislation and Y

regulations. it reports on and accounts for the internal risk management and control systems to the Audit [.:'1

Committee and the Supervisory Board. The system of risk management and internal control does not only cover
the financial controls that are significant for the proper and timely reporting of the financial condition of the
Group, but equally covers all the other operations that are significant in the achievement of the business
objectives of LYCOS Europe. Within LYCOS Europe, risk management and internal control are an integral part of
business management.

Risk management

As part of this program, LYCOS Europe systematically lists significant risks that might affect the Company,
quantifies and qualifies their potential effects, and determines the keyleversrequired to influence each risk.
Beyond this, certain employees are assigned responsibility for speci ",3
for monitoring potential risks and ensure that the agreed measures § Jgted. The summary below
should give an overview of significant risks, the Company fs exposed to. KPMQ Audit

the Appandix pertaining to the latter of
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Economic environment

LYCOS Europe, as a company In the Intemet sector, faces several risks in its competitive environment. This
could be risks related to competitors, the overall market, its user behavior and advertising and sales in
general. LYCOS Europe therefore controls its economic environment regularly and if necessary is prepared to
act in order to avoid possible risks.

Financial risks

Risks in the performance of financial instruments could potentialty subject the Company. Financial instruments
primarily consist of cash and cash equivalents. Substantially all of the Company’s cash and cash equivalents are
managed by financial institutions. Additionally the Company is exposed to the payment behavior of its
customers. Accounts receivable are typically unsecured and are derived from revenues earned from customers
primarily located in Europe. The Company performs ongoing credit evaluations of its customers and maintains
reserves for potential credit losses.

IT and Infrastructure

LYCOS Europe maintains a standardized, centralized and partly outsourced IT environment. Due to this, the
Company is exposed to several risks related to dependence on single systems and resulting general system
failures. LYCOS Europe reduces this risk by, among other things, outsourcing, secure data processing centers,
implementation of back-up systems, firewalls, virus scanners, access systems and an extensive operation
monftoring.

Legal regulations

LYCOS Europe fs exposed to several risks related to legal regulations, such as data protection rules, sales
contracts, licenses, and misuse of internal information. The Company therefore maintains its legal department
in order to ensure avoldance of these or similar risks.

Personal risks

As an emerging and innovative company operating in the internet business, LYCOS Europe has to rely on highty
qualified employees. In order to reduce related loss of expertise due to fluctuation of qualified personal,
incentive programs, performance-based compensation systems and international development possibilities are
implemented and offered to the employees.

Product development

Innovative and up-to-date products are a critical success factor for the future development of the Company,
Research and development activities play a decisive roie in the Internet business. In addition to this, products
have to meet quality and safety standards. LYCOS Europe reduces this risk in the overall organizational setup. -
Product management analyzes user demands and is responsible for future product developments. Each
development must pass a tollgate process, where extensive testing is required upfront each roll out.

Internal control

The core policies and procedures that define the Group's intemal control environment are communicated
amongst others throughout handbooks and policies within the Company. The different tasks of the finance and
administrative team are clearly separated.

Billing
The corporate billing department, amongst others, is responsible for improving automatic procedures in order
to prevent possible fraud on payments for premium services.

Controlling

The corporate controlling department analyses and provides management of the Group with additional
financial and strategic informatfon, e.g. budgets and forecasts. A special focus is set to the control of
revenues, On a regular basis sales contracts and related deliveries and recognized revenues are reviewed
centrally. In addition cost accounts are subject to a central review. Financial systems are in the responsibility
of the corporate controlling department. Procedures and rules were implemented focusing on limitation of
risks and authorizations.

External financial reporting ‘

LYCOS Europe prepares its financiat statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRS”) and internal accounting guidelines. The Finance departments pf all Groups® entities are responsible for
issuing their local financial statements and corresponding reports. Thi qlﬁlﬁq sent out to the Group’s
consolidation department using the Group’s accounting consolidation JAEwasLERCn order to elaborate the
Group’s consolidated financial statements and the related financial communication. KRWIGholigditrly check

the consistency of the financial statements they use to prepare the consolidated stalpmaMiEndRESHMNY the latter of

other financial information submitted to intenal and external reporting purposes.
16 FeR QP zzz—_
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Internal financial reporting

Management is provided frequently, at least monthly, with financial information to control the operational
performance of the Group and each of its subsidiaries. This information together with other financial
information is used for operative control and supervision of probable risks.

Procurement
The corporate procurement department is in charge of supervising and processing major European [T-related
investments. Each material purchase follows also the four-eye principle.

Treasury

The corporate treasury department is in charge of reviewing the authorization processes for each bank account
of the Group and its subsidiaries. Each payment has to be approved by using at least the four-eye principle and
therefore requires approvals from two different employees. Monthly cash planning and reporting by the
corporate treasury department together with the finance departments of the subsidiaries provides Management
with the necessary information to control the cash position of the Group. A cash pooting system transfers on
regular basis Incoming cash from the subsidiaries to centrally managed accounts. [n addition Management is
provided with a monthly review and reporting of the Group’s account receivables.

These procedures are evaluated and extended regularty to ensure they take account of changing requirements.

Code of conduct

The Company has implemented a set of rules of behavior that employees have to observe in each country.
There is also a group-wide code on dealing with price-sensitive information and insider trading. LYCOS Europe
continues to work towards its overall objective of embedding risk management into the culture, processes and
operatfons.

8 Outlook

The investments of LYCOS Europe into a centralized business unit structure and its outstanding development
teamn are paying off. With this launch platform in place the Company is ready to increase the number of
innovative developments and secure its leading market position.

In 2007 LYCOS Europe will introduce several new state-of-the-art products, mainly in the areas of
communication services and communities, We expect to present some developments already in the first half of
2007.

The focus of these new services or enhanced existing services is thereby to increase both, the revenue stream
from online advertising as well as from paid services and shopping. Following our strategy both revenue
streams have become equally important to the Company. With the latest innovations in place LYCOS Europe
expects to make further progress with its operating financial results.

in order to reach better economies of scale from the beginning LYCOS Europe will also go beyond the European
borders in 2007 and start offering services in the United States. Therefore the Company will introduce Jubii as
its launch brand in the United States.

While this will cause some investment in the beginning LYCOS Europe believes that it also brings a great
success in the end. Due to the large American market it will be much easier to reach a critical mass of users
with just one English version of a service.

With all these activities LYCOS Europe expects to further improve its basis for continued growth.
Haarlem, the Netherlands m
January 26, 2007

Christoph Mohn, CEO 16 FER 2007
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LYCOS Europe N.V. Consolidated Balance Sheets

b
ASSETS
[ Property, plant and equipment 5 3,335 3,820
) Intangible assets 6,7,8 47,399 28,052
Deferred tax assets 24 1% 184
f ' Other investments 9 9,951 9,939
H Other non-current assets 10 1,292 2,081
Total non-current assets 62,167 44,076
- _
i Cash and cash equivalents 9 70,886 63,695
L Other investments 9 12,500 29,480
Accounts receivable and other recelvables 11,12 15,650 17,154
- Prepaid expenses and other current assets 11 6,446 15,322
: Assets classified as held for sale 6 14,528 0
b Total current assets 120,010 127,651
. Total assets 182,177 171,727
; ’ SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
o Class AA registered shares 620 620
! Class AB registered shares 620 620
. Class B ordinary bearer shares 1,883 1,883
Share premium 1,587,049 1,589,584
r Legal reserves 4,968 2,433
i Treasury shares (2,052) (2,052)
Translation reserve 1,137 578
Accumulated deficit {1,467,298) (1,447,062)
{ Unappropriated result 1,704 (20,236)
i Total shareholders' equity attributable to 15
o equity holders of the Company 128,631 126,368
‘%“ Deferred revenue 20 406 1,878
L. Deferred tax liabilities 24 2,188 908
Provisions 17 14,075 87
e Total non-current Habilities 16,669 2,873
|
L. Short-term debt 148 7,940
Accounts payable 7,992 9,994
i Restructuring provision 17 830 1,939 -
{ ' Other short-term liabitities 18 17,432 21,634 t
Deferred revenue 20 5,383 5,979 At
Liabillties classified as held for sale [3 5,092 0 i
f Total current liabilities 36,877 42,486 L)
| Total liabilities 53,546 45,359 L
Total shareholders’ equity and liabilities 182,177 171,727 t
‘ I
S (:1
. )
- KPMG Audit
L__ The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements the Appendix partaining to tha tatter of
| 16 FeB m%-
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Continued aperations

‘The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

Page 23

Advertising 35,658 38,279
Paid services and shopping 40,447 32,796
Interconnect 5,906 6,893
Licensing and other 369 1,278
Total revenues 82,380 79,246
Cost of revenues (30,219) (29,405)
Gross profit 52,161 49,841
.Gross profit before highl[ghted items - 52,181, ".’50,577
Réstructuring ' -1 (200 . (736).
Gross profit - 52,161 . 49,841
Other operating expenses 21,22 (66,151) {69,200)
Other operating income 23 852 669
Loss from operations (13,138) {18,690)
Loss from operations before highlighted ftems - v (9,509) - (11 997)
Restructuring . - T 160 - (5,069)
Impairment on property, plant and equipment N N ! : (236)';
Impairment on intangible assets : - :(2,393)
Other amortization : (1,396) o, 388)3
Loss from operations . {13,138) _(18,6%0)
Finance income ~Z,419 2,779
Finance expense 63) 324
QOther financing income / expense {265) {483)
Net financing income 2,091 2,620
Loss before tax {11,047) {16,070)
Income taxes 24 (21) (249)
Net loss from continuing operations {11,068) (16,319}
Discontinued operations
Profit / (loss) from discontinued operations 6 12,772 3,917
{net of income tax}
Net profit / (net loss) for the pericd attributable to 1,704 (20,236)
equity holders of the Company
Basic / diluted profit / {loss) per share (Euro) - 25 {0.04) {0.05) |
continued operation
Basic / diluted profit / (loss) per share (Euro) 25 {0.06)
Weighted average number of shares outstanding k] 311,576,344
KRMG-Audit———
the Appendix perteining to the leiter of

16 FEB %
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LYCOS Europe N.V. Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Continued operations
Cash flows from operating activities

Loss before tax {11,047) {16,070)
Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortization 5,977 8,115
Impailrment of property, plant and equipment 0 236
Impairment of intangible assets 2,393 0
Finance income (2,356) {3,099)
Other non cash movements 667 895
Change in accounts receivable 373 2,663
Change in prepaid expenses and other current assets 3,661 (3,716)
Change in other non-current assets 858 B36
Change in accounts payable 317 (1,101)
Change in current liabilities (1,797) 811
Change in deferred revenue (1,906} (812)
Change in other non-cash items (43) (1,705)
interest paid ] {12) 0
Interest recelved 2,563 3,254
Income tax paid (129) 0
Net cash provided / (used) in operating activities (481) (9,693)

Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisitions of property, plant and equipment and other

intangible assets (2,145) (3,092
Development expenditure (1,754) (440
Change in short and long-term investments 16,816 10,058
Acquisitions of subsidiaries, net of cash acquired (17,372} _ 0
Net cash (used) / provided in investing activities (4,455) 6,526
Cash flows from financing activities
Change in short-term debt (2,792) 2,861
Net cash (used) / provided in financmg activities (2,792) 2,861
scontinued operations "
Net cash from operating activities {3,704) {5,955) 2
Net cash from Investing activities 16,592 0 i
Net cash from financing activities 0 0 N
Net cash from discontinued operations 12,888 {5,955) =
g
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash b
equivalents 3 (119 Frdt
=
Increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 5,191 {6,380) =
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of the period 65,695 72,075 tie)
Cash and cash equivalents, end of the period 9 —r—r—R.BB6 65,695
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements KPMG Audit
the Appendix pertaining to the lettar of
16 FEB 2 e
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Balance as at January 1, 2005

1,589,057

2,950

(723,656)

{1,401,586)

Maovement capltalized development
expenses

527

(527)

Appropriation of the net result of
5 year

(45,476)

Translation gain

Net toss

Balance as at December 31, 2005

62,000,000 620

52,000,000 620

188, 300,000

1,883

1,569,584

2,423

(723,656)

(2,052) 578

Movement capitalized development
expenses

{2,535)

2,535

{1,447,062)

Appropriation of the net result of
previous year

{20,238)

Translation gain

Translation gain on disposal

29)

Net profit

Balance as at December 31, 2006

184,300,000

1,587,049

4,968

(713, 656)

(2,063) 1,137

(1,467,298)

Balance as at January 1, 2005

(45,476)

{(1,446,890)

Moverment capitalized development

0

| SXpenses
Appropriation of the net result of
previous year

45,476

0

Translation gafn

406

Net toss

(20,236)

(20,236)

(20,235)

Balance as at December 31, 2005

(20,236)

{1,466,720)

126,368

Movement capitalized development
expenses

0

Appropriation of the net result of
previous year

20,236

0

Translation gain

]

588

Translation gain on disposal

29

Net profit

1,704

1,704

29)]
128,631
~KRMG-Atieit—
the Appendix pertaining to the letter of

16 FEB 2007 ;
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Balance as at December 11, 2006 15 1,704 (1,464,457)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consalidated financial statements
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Significant accounting policies

New accounting pronouncements

Group entities

Segment reporting

Property, ptant and equipment

Acquisition and disposat of subsidiaries
Intangible assets

Impairment testing

Cash, cash equivalents and other investments

. Other non-current assets

. Accounts receivable and other receivables
. Related party transactions

. Compensation of key management personnet
. Compensation of the Supervisory Board

. Shareholders’ equity

. Share based payments

. Provisions

. Other short-term liabilities

. Contingencies and commitments

. Deferred revenue

. Other operating expenses

. Personnel expenses

. Other operating income

. Income taxes

. Earnings per share

. Subsequent events
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1. Significant accounting policies

LYCOS Europe N.V. (“LYCOS Europe” or the “Company” / ISIN NLO000Z33195) is one of the leading European
intemet destinations operating an international network of websites in eight languages. The Company’s
combination of portal and communication, communities, hosting and domain names and shopping addresses
a wide range of target groups. The Company commenced operations in the year 1997, and the companies
existing before 2000 were reorganized as subsidiaries of LYCOS Europe N.V. in January 2000, The registered
office of the Company is in Haarlem, the Netherlands {LYCOS Europe N.V., Richard Holkade 36, 2033 PZ
Haarlem, the Netherlands).

The consolidated financial statements of the Company comprise the Company and its subsidiaries (together
referred to as the “Group”). The financial statements were authorized for issue by the Management Board
of the Company on January 26, 2007.

a) Statement of compliance

LYCOS Europe has prepared consolidated financial statements in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards and its interpretatfons as adopted by Article 4 of Regulation (EC) No. 1606/2002 of the
European Partiament and of the Council of July 19, 2002 on the application of intemnational accounting
standards (Official Journal EC L 243 p.1) (“IFRS").

b) Basis of preparation

The financial statements are presented in Euro, rounded to the nearest thousand. The accounting policies
set out below have been applied consistently by the Group to all periods presented in these consolidated
financial statements.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and
liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and varlous other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis of making the judgments about carrying values of assets and liabilities that
are not readity apparent from other sources, Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Judgments and estimates are principally made in the following declsion:
- Impairment test

- Determination of earn-out payments

- Deferred taxes

The estimates and undertying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period or in the period of the revision and future perieds if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis.

c) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company fnclude all of its controlled subsidiaries. Control
exists when the Company has the power directly, or indirectly, to govern the financial and operating policies
of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. The financial statements of subsidiaries are included
in the consolidated financial statements from the date that control commences until the date that controf
ceases,

Intragroup balances and any unrealized gains and losses or income and expenses arising from intragroup
transactions, are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealized gains arising
from transactions with associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the entity,
Unrealized losses are eliminated in the same way as unrealized gains, but only to the extent that there is no
evidence of impairment.

d) Forelgn currency
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated at the foreign exchange date of the
transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencie$ at aWt date are

translated to Euro at the foreign exchange rate nuling at that date, Foreign exchange diffi

on
translation are recognized in the income statement. Appendix Perteining to the lnttey of

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations, including goodwill and fair value adjustmer'.m
consolidation, are translated to Euro at foreign exchange rates ruling at the balance sh W

revenues and expenses of foreign operations are transiated to Euro at rates approximating to the foreig
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange differences ariskifiain fort

are recognized directly in a separate component of equity. KPMG Accauntants N. V

LYCOS
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e) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different remaining useful lives, they are
accounted for as separate items of property, plant and equipment.

Lease equipment is capitalized where the terms of the lease indicate that the Company maintains
substantially all of the risks and rewards of the equipment. Risks and rewards are maintained by the lessee
if among others the present value of the minimum lease payments amounts to at least substantially all of
the fair value of the leased asset. Lease equipment, which is classified as a finance lease is stated at the
lower of its fair value and present value of the lease payments, net of accumulated amortization, and
amortized over the lesser of the estimated useful tives of the equipment or the lease term.

Depreciation is charged to the income statement on a straight line basis over the estimated useful lives of
property, plant and equipment. The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Computers : 2-3 years
Fumniture and fixtures : 3-10 years
Other property, plant and equipment s 3-5 years

f) Intangible assets

All business combinations are accounted for by applying the purchase method. Goodwill represents amounts
arising on acquisition of subsidiaries. In respect of business acquisitions that have occurred since January 1,
2004, goodwill represents the difference between the cost of the acquisition and the fair value of the net
{dentifiable assets acquired. In respect of acquisitions prior to this date, goodwill is included on the basis of
its deemed cost, which represents the amount recorded under previous GAAP. According to exemptions
provided by IFRS 1 the classification and accounting treatment of business combinations that occurred prior
to January 1, 2004 have not been reconsidered in preparing the Group’s opening IFRS balance sheet at
January 1, 2004, Goodwill is stated at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is allocated to
a group of cash-generating units and is no longer amortized but tested annually for impairment. Goodwill
was tested for impairment on June 30, 2006.

Expenditure on research activities, undertaken with the prospect of gaining new scientific or technical
knowledge and understanding, is recqgnized in the income statement as expenses are incurred.

Expenditure on development activities, enhancement of the Company’s website and associated systems, is
capitalized if the product or process is technically and commerctally feasible and the Group has sufficient
resources to complete development. The expenditure capitalized includes direct costs of material and
sarvices, payroll costs for employees devoting time to software projects during the application development
stage and Indirect costs for rent and office computer usage. Other development costs are recognized in the
income statement as expenses are incurred. Capitalized development costs are stated at cost less
accumulated amortization and impairment losses.

Other intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and
impatrment.

Amortization is charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful tives of
intangible assets unless such lives are indefinite. Goodwill and intangible assets with an indefinite useful life
are systematically tested for impafrment. Other intangible assets are amortized from the date they are b

avatlable for use. The estimated useful lives are as fotlows: ;
Licenses and other rights ¢ 1-10 years 3
Trademark licenses : 5-10 years g

Capitalized development expenses: 2 years |

g) Impairment
The carrying amounts of the Group's assets, other than deferred tax assets, are revlewed at each balance
sheet date to determine whether there is any indication that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.

For goodwili, intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life and irft2
avaflable for use, the recoverable amount is estimated annually. Testi
be performed if there is any indicatien for impaimment. An impairmen : egever the

carrying amount of an asset or its group of cash-generating units exceeds its MWEW

Impafrment losses are recognized in the income statement. Impairment losses reco Siestalping to the lotter of
group of cash-generating units are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to

the group of cash-generating units (group of units) and then, to reduce the carrying a@@rFEﬁrm%

assets in the unit {group of units) on a pro rata basis.

The recoverable amount is the greater of their fair value tess costs to sell and valuelﬂ{tbkmwﬁa@n purposes
MG Account N.V.
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value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
For an asset that does not generate largely independent cash inflows, the recoverable amount is determined
for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. The recoverable amount of the Group's receivables
carried at amortized cost is calculated as the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at
the original effective interest rate.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill s not reversed. In respect of other assets, an impairment loss is
reversed if there is an indication that the recoverable amount may have increased. An impairment loss is
reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been
recognized.

h)} Income Tax
Income tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is recognized in
the income statement.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous

years.

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet Uability method, providing for temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and Uabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used
for taxation purposes. The following temporary differences are not provided for: goodwill not deductible for
tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit,
and differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that they will probably not reverse in
the foreseeable future. The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of realization
or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date.

A deferred tax asset is recognized only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the asset can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.

i} Trade and other recetvabies

Trade and other receivables are stated at thefr amortized cost using the effective interest method. Accounts
receivable are typically unsecured and are derived from revenues earmed from customers primarily located
in Europe.

j) Share capital

When share capital recognized as equity is repurchased, the amount of the consideration patd, including
directly attributable costs, is recognized as a change in equity. Repurchased shares are classified as treasury
shares and presented as a deduction from total equity.

k) Employee benefits
The share option programs of the Group allow Group employees to acquire shares of the Company. No

compensation costs for stock options were recognized for stock options granted with an exercise price at or N
above fair market value as a result of adoption of exemption rules provided in IFRS 1. &
;
) Financial instruments L)
Non-derivative financial instruments comprise investments in equity, trade and other receivables, cash and ¢y

cash equivatents, loans and bormowings and trade and other payables. Non-derivative financial instruments !
are recognized initially at fair value plus, for instruments not at fair value through profit or loss, any
directly attributable transaction costs, except as described below.

A financial instrument {s recognized if the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Financial assets are derecognized if the Company’s contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial assets expire or if the Company transfers the financial asset to another party without retaining
control of substanttally all risks and rewards of the asset. Regular way purchasgs.and sales of financial assets
are accounted for at trade date, i.e. the date that the Company commits itse ¥ !“’ sefor sell the asset.
Financial liabilties are derecognized if the Company’s obligations specified infRE pXxpire or are

discharged or cancetled. KPMQ Audie

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and call deposits. Deposits with an oﬁginﬁ?%ﬁﬁﬂ!{!’&!@m to the lstter of
greater than three months are labeled other investments. Deposits with remaining matuﬁtie:lo less than

twelve months from the balance sheet date are classified as current assets. Deposits with re #FE%
maturities greater than twelve months from the balance sheet date are classified as non-current assets.

Initlaly for
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Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Company’s cash
management are included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the statement of
cash flows. The gain or loss on remeasurement to fair value is recognized immediately in profit or loss,
Finance income is recognized in the income statement as it accrues, using the effective interest method.

m) Provisions

A provision is recognized in the balance sheet when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation
as a resutt of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefit will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the effect of the time
value of money is material, the amount of the provision is discounted by using a pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessments and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.

A provision for restructuring is recognized when the Group has approved a detailed and formal restructuring
plan, and the restructuring has either commenced or has been announced publicly. Future operating costs
are not provided for.

n) Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are stated at thelr amortized cost to settle,

o) Revenue

The Group generates revenues due to rendering of services. Revenues comprise advertising, patd service,
shopping, interconnect, licensing and other revenues. The Company recognizes no revenues if there are
significant uncertainties regarding recovery of the consideration due or associated costs.

Advertising revenues

Revenues from the sale of advertising are obtained through contracts and payments, which business partners
make for prominent placing and advertising space on the Company's websites. Under these contracts, the
Company has a fixed or a variable price for a certain number of page impressions or user referrals to other
Internet sites. Advertising revenues are recognized in the income statement in proportion to the stage of
completion of the transaction at the balance sheet date or ratably over the period. The stage of completion
is assessed by reference to delivered impression compared to contractual agreed upon impressions.

Paid service and shopping revenues

Revenues from paid services and shopping are made up from fees charged to Intemet users for the access to
certain products of the Company, from commissions on the turnover made by the business partners and
generated through the Company’s websites, as well as from commissions of the sale of goods on the
Internat. Revenues from paid services and shopping are recognized at the time the service is rendered.

Intercannect revenue

Revenues from providing interconnect consist of the portion of the interconnection fees due to the
Company. Revenues from providing Internet access are recorded at gross when the Company acts as
principal in the transaction and carries the risk of loss for the collection. Only a commission is recorded as
revenue from providing Intermnet access when the criteria as described above are not met. Revenues from
providing interconnect are recognized at the time the service is rendered.

Licensing and other revenues

Licensing and other revenues consist of revenues from licensing which are generated from the fees for
product licenses and the relevant maintenance and support services. Revenues from licensing and other
revenues are recognized at the time the service is rendered.

Barter transactions

Revenues from barter transactions have been valued based upon similar cash transactions according to

SIC 31. Advertising revenues from barter transactions are recognized similar to advertising revenues. During
the period ended December 31, 2006, and 2005, revenues from barter transactions have been less than

5 percent of total revenues.

p) Government grants
Government grants are recognized in the balance sheet initially as deferred income when there is
reasonable assurance that it will be received and that the Group will comply with the conditions assoclated

with the grant. Grants that compensate the Group for expenses in ar costs of an asset are recognized
as other operating income in the income statement.

q) Expenses KPMG Audit

Cost of revenues consists of the costs directly associated with the production anWﬂw letter
online media properties. These costs primarily consist of costs related to in-house production of content,

fees paid for content purchased from third parties, Internet connection charges a cense f
depreciation and amortization related to data center, hosting cost, other network %nsation

.|.'..f‘...“'
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expenses.

Costs other than costs of revenues are allocated using a functional split to Sales and Marketing, General and
Administrative and Research and Development expenses.

r) Segment reporting

A segment s a distinguishable component of the Group’s business that is engaged in providing products
(business segment) or in providing products or services within a particular economic environment
{(geographical segment), which fs subject to risks and rewards that are different from those of other
segments,

In order to identify the Group’s reporting segments, the dominant source and nature of an enterprise’s risks
and retumns should be selected. The risks and rates of retum of LYCOS Europe N.V. are affected both by
differences in geographical areas and business units. intemnal reporting of the group is based as well on
regional structures and the business unit approach,

Management believes that choosing geographical segments as the primary segment reflects best the current
risk approach of the Group. Business units were chosen as the secondary segment.

Geographic segments are determined by the country in which each legal entity is operating. Business
segments are split into the business units Portal/Access/Communication/Communities, Hosting and Domain
names and Shopping.

s) Discontinued operation

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group's business that represents a separate major line of
business or geographical area of operations that has been disposed of or is held for sale, or 13 a subsidiary
acquired exclusively with a view to resale. Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon disposal or
when the operation meets the critera to be classified as held for sale, if eartier. When an operation is
classified as a discontinued operation, the comparative income statement is restated as if the operation had
been discontinued from the start of the comparative period.

2. New accounting pronouncements

The following new IFRS standards and interpretations, which have been adopted by the International
Accounting Standards Board and endorsed by the European Commission, have effective dates such that they
apply only to annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2007. The Company therefore is not required
to, and did not take such standards into account in the preparation of the Consolidated Financial
Statements:

- IFRS 7, “Financial Instruments: Disclosures Amendment to IAS 1 Capital Disclosures™;

- Amendment to [AS 39, “Financial instruments: Recognition and Measurement: Cash Flow Hedge
Accounting of Forecast Intragroup Transactions”;

- Amendments to IAS 39, “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement: The Falr Value Option™;

- Amendment to [AS 39 and IFRS 4, “Financial Guarantee Contracts";

- Amendments to IAS 19, “Employee Benefits”;

- IFRIC 8, “Scope of IFRS 27,

The Company has determined that the impact of these new standards and interpretations will not be
material to its financial condition or results of operations.

KPMG Audit
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3. Group entities

Subsidiaries of LYCOS Europe N.V. included In the consolidated financial statements are as follows

(direct and indirect holdings as at December 31, 2006):

OO PaNY o R e e T OGP £ e COUTTErye B o S Seattory Reatans
|3’_§~ Q&h%%@%’»ﬁ*%%%ﬁtﬁg% S Re et wﬁé%?ﬁ%r‘{‘ﬁ e %%1 SR
Aster-Europe ltd. 100 % United Kingdom Birmingham
| Begonia-Europe ltd. 100 % United Kingdom Birmingham
Bottnia Internet Provider AB (“BIP AB™) 100 % Sweden Stockholm
Chrysanthemum-Europe Itd. 100 % United Kingdom Birmingham
Dahtia-Europe 1td. 100 % United Kingdom Birmingham
dopoly GmbH 100 % Germany Munich
Home SE AB 100% Sweden Stockholm
tvy-Europe ltd. 100 % United Kingdom Birmingham
Jubii A/S 100% Denmark Copenhagen
Jubii iP Itd. 100 % United Kingdom London
Jubif LLC 100 % United States Wilmington
Jubii Services ltd. 100 % United Kingdom London
Lily-Europe ltd. 100 % United Kingdom Bimmingham
LYCOS cisc 100 % Armenia Yerevan
LYCOS Eastern Europe GmbH 100 % Germany Giitersloh
LYCOS Espana Internet Services 5L 100 % Spain Madrid
LYCOS Europe BY 100 % Netherlands Amsterdam
| LYCOS Europe GmbH 100 ¥ Germany Giitersloh
LYCOS France SARL 100 % France Paris
LYCOS italia Srl 100 % italy Mailand
LYCOS Netherlands BY 100 % Netherlands Amsterdam
LYCOS Pro S.L. 100 % Spain Madrid
LYCOS UK ltd. 100 % United Kingdom London
mentasys GmbH 100 % Germany Karlsruhe
Mimosa-Europe ltd. 100 % United Kingdom Birmingham
|_Nectarine-Europe ltd. 100 % United Kingdom Birmingham
Qdina Sverige AB 100 % Sweden Stockholm
Oleander-Europe td. 100 % United Kingdom Birmingham
Pangora GmbH 100 % Germany Munich
Pangora Italia 5ri 100 % Italy Rome
Pangora LLC 100% United States Wilmington
Pangora SAS 100 % France Paris
Peach-Europe lid. 100 % United Kingdom Birmingham
Spray Network AB 100 % Sweden Stockhotm
Spray Network Services AB 100 % Sweden Stockhotm
Spray Telecom AB 100 ¥ Sweden Stockholm
Spray Telecom Network AB 100 % Sweden Stockholm
united-domains AG 100 % Germany Munich &,
YouSmile Geschenke GmbH 100 ¥ Germany Karlsruhe Lo
1
ey
Spray Network GmbH, a 100 percent German subsidiary of Lycos Europe N.V., was liquidated during 2006. ,;))
I
Iyt
R
i
KPMQG Audit
the Appandix perteining to the lgttar of
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4, Segment reporting

Segment information is presented in respect of the Group’s geographical segments. The primary format, gecgraphical segments, is based on the Group's management and
internal reporting structure. Intersegment pricing s determined on an arm’s length basis. The secondary segment, the business segment, is based on the business unit structure
of the Company. Segment resutts include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis.

Yeoar

ended
De-
cember
31, 31, 31, 31, 1, 31, 31, 1, 1n, 3, 3, 3, 3, 31, 31, M,
2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2605 2006 2005 2006 2005
restated restated
Revenues 51,402 49,840 42,195 46,221 12,028 12,156 6,052 5,155 7,810 6,686 5,078 __ 5,406 (42,185} {46,218) 82,380 79,246
Revenues from 27,346 27,376 2,049 7,111 904 12,323 437 5,984 215 3,152 | (30,951) § (55,946} 0 1] 0 4
intersegment transactions _
Total revenues 78,748 77,216 44,244 53,332 12,931 14,479 6,489 11,139 8,025 9,838 | (25,873) | (50,540) | (42,185) | (46,218) 82,380 79,246
Sum of cost of revenues and (77,483) | (85,501) | (47,102) | (57,379) | (15,801} | (25,530) 8,411y | (11,247y § (10,352) | (11,985} 18,806 43,524 44,825 90,182 | (95,51B) | (97,936)
operating expenses
Profit éo(loss) from 1,265 | (8,285) | (2,858} | (4,047) | (2,869) | (1,051) | (1,922) (108) | (2,327) | (14D [ (7,067) | (7,016) 2,640 3,964 | (13,138) | (15,690)
operations
Net financing income (130) 206 100 {458) {161} {215} 35 (32 {4 {14 2,373 2,718 {122 415 2,091 2,620 |
Net incorne tax gain/ (loss) 89 __(38) 329 457 15 49 0 [1 Q 0 {115} {235 (339 {462 {21) {249
Discontinued operations [1] - 1] 14,951 0 [] 0 o 0 [» [1 0 [+ (2,179 (3,917 12,772 {3, M7
Net profit / (net loss) for 1,224 | (8,117) 12,522 | (4,048) | (3,015) [ (1,217) | (1,887 (140) | (2,331) | 2,161y | (4,809} | (4,553) o 0 1,704 | (20,236
the year )
Thereof depreciation, {2,939) 13,041} 13,224) {4,253) {530) (1,012) {75) {107) {452) {428) {3,788) {1,531) 2,5 2,021 (8,508) (8,351)
amortizatfon and .

impairment loss

* The Swedish operating business is presented as discontinued, although Spray Network Services AB, one of the technical service centers of the Company located in Sweden is
still continued. :

KPMG Audit
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ended ended
De-
cember | cember
31, 31,
2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
["Revenues 87,480 | 94,656 | 22,169 | 16,981 14,916 | 13,826 0 1] (42,185) | (46,218) | 82,380 | 79,246
| Segment assets 127,849 | 133,915 | 24,045 | 21820 | 29,986 | 15,992 297 0 - - | 182177 | 171,727
Cash flow from operating activities (2,278) | (11,349) 135 (376) | (2,643) (555) 601 | (3,368 3,704 5,955 {481 19,693)
Cash flow from investing activities 23,828 | - 4,177 (375) 681 | (13,939) 499 2,623 1,169 | (16,592) 0! (4,455 6,526
Cash flow from financing activities 0 0 (] 0 0 0 2,792 2,861 0 0l (2,792 7,861
Capital expenditure 3,061 4,007 576 650 718 489 3,928 1,060 | (3,921) | (1,060) 4,362 5,254
KPMG Audit
the Appandix pertaining to ths latter of
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5. Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and if applicable any
impairment charge, including equipment under capital lease. They comprise of:

T T e K ST
e Rt i %ﬁ“%ﬁé :
£ LA '-‘:v\'\ O

Cost .

Balance as at January 1, 2005 31,915 4,471 20 36,406
Acquisitions, other 1,127 983 0 2,110
Disposals (10,818) {768) 0 (11,586)
Other / transfer (268) (476) {20) {764)
Effects of movements in foreign (313) (18) 0 (331)
exchange rates

Balance as at December 31, 2005 21,643 4,192 0 25,835
Acquisitions, business 155 98 6 259
combinations

Acquisitions, other 1,341 94 0 1,435
Disposals (1,262) m 0 (1,263)
Transfer to assets held for sale (1,653) {584) 0 (2,237)
Other (167) (3) 0 (170)
Effects of movements in foreign (1,263) {8) 0 (1,271)
exchange rates .

Balance as at December 11, 2006 18,794 3,788 [ 22,588
Depreciation and impairment

losses 1
Balance as at January 1, 2005 {27,092) {2,621) (6) (29,719)
Depreciation charge (3,310) —_(697) 6 (4,001
Impairment losses 0 (236) 0 (236
Disposals 10,687 687 0 11,374
| Other / transfer 1 276 0 277
Effects of movements in foreign 280 10 0 290
exchange rates

Balance as at December 31, 2005 (19,434) {2,581) 0 (22,015)
Depreciation charge (1,512) (388) D {1,900)
Disposals 2,634 107 0 2,741
Transfer to assets held for sale 1,597 508 0 2,105
Other 24 28 0 52
Effects of movements in foreign (228) (B) 0 (236)
exchange rates

Balance as at December 31, 2006 (16,919) (2,334) 0 {19,253)
Carrying amounts _

Balance a3 at January 1, 2005 4,823 1,850 14 6,687
Balance as at January 1, 2006 2,209 1,611 0 3,820
Balance as at December 31, 2006 1,875 1,454 6 3,335|

6, Acquisition and disposal of subsidiaries

united-domains

On January 13, 2004, LYCOS Europe N.V. acquired all shares in united-domem

specializes in worldwide domain registration. In addition to the fixed purch
Europe N.V. agreed to pay a consideration to the sellers using a formula based upon the nukRMG, Aguiteu

domain registrations. The additional consideration of EUR 1.7 million was paid in August 2686 Apshaig
adjusted during 2007. As a result of the payment the goodwill related to this transaction increased by

million to EUR 5.8 million,

mentasys

On October 6, 2006, Pangora GmbH, an indirect 100 percent subsidiary of LYCOS Europe uny&alg

15 FB

acquisition of all shares in mentasys GmbH, a German shopping solution specialist. The PUEIE R
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30.0 million including a contingent consideration of EUR 14.0 million based on the performance in the years
2007 to 2009. Preliminary goodwill and other intangible assets including the effects of deferred taxes
recognized amounts to EUR 26.4 million and to EUR 3.3 million, respectively, LYCOS Eurppe obtained control on
November 6, 2006, after approval by the Competition Authorities. The Company includes mentasys GmbH in its
financial statements as of November 1, 2005.

Balance sheet of mentasys GmbH
| Long-tenm assets 5,662
Short-term assets 2,023
Total assets 7,685
Total equi 4,142
Total (abilities 3,543
Total liabilities and equity 7,685

Result of mentasys GmbH

Revenugs 4,642
Expenses _(5,230)

Result from operating activities (588)

Net financing income 21

Income tax expense 0]
Profit / (loss) for the period (567

Swedish business

LYCOS Europe decided to discontinue its Swedish Portal and Access business. Therefore the Company sold the
Swedish Portal business together with the Spray trademark and its legal entity Spray TMH AB on September 29,
2006 for a consideration of SEK 150.0 million (at transaction date EUR 16,2 million) and sold the Swedish Access
business on November 23, 2006 for a consideration of SEK 172.0 million (EUR 18.9 million), The sale of the
Swedish Access business was subject to approval by the Swedish Competition Authorities on December 31,
2006. Further information is provided in note 26, Both businesses are presented as discontinued operation. The
preliminary gain on sale for the portal after deduction of net assets and transaction costs amounts to EUR 15.0

million.

Assets held for sale

Property, plant and equipment 45
Intangible assets 7,645
Accounts recefvables 3,809
Other assets 3,029
Total Assets 14,528

Liabilities held for sale

Deferred tax liabilities 409
Accounts payables 2,61%
Other short term liabilities 2,064
Total Liabilities 5,092

Page 37
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Result of discontinued operations

Revenues 42,185 46,218
| Expenses {44,825) {50,182
Result from operating activities {2,640) (3,964)
Net financing income 122 (415
Income tax expense 339 462
Loss after tax but before gain on sale {2,179) (3,917
Gain on sale of discontinued operation 14,951 0
income tax on gain of sale 0 0
Profit / {loss) for the pericd 12,772 (3,917
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8. Impairment testing

Goodwill

Goodwill acquired through business combinations has been allocated to individual cash-generating units or
groups of cash-generating units. These cash-generating units are part of a reportable segment as presented in
the segment reporting.

The following cash generating units or groups of cash generating units have significant carrying amounts of
goodwill:

SpEcember:
205 E

united domains {Germany) | Subsidiary 5,806 5,276
Pangora group {Europe] Subsidiary (several) 30,043 3,686
Access (Sweden) Subsidiary {partly) 0 5,293 |
Total Goodwill 35,849 14,255

The recoverable amount of the cash generating units or groups of cash generating units presented above is
determined based on value in use calculations using cash flow projections based on the actual operating
results, a one-year business plan, market research analysis and management experience. Cash flows are
projected for a five-year period taking into account a terminal value based on the performance expected in the
fifth year. The carrying amount of each unit is below its recoverable amount,

The table below presents average key assumptions used:

v L 3 T g LA E T a a e ~ AT T KR o SV R

Sy R mptaN T S o Rl

@ﬁ%@“ i T e pareait) o

United Domains (Germany) Revenues (domaln name selling) 13.2
Pangora Group (Europe) Revenues (redirects} 13.2

Other intangible assets

During the year 2006 the page view development of www.fireball.de was an indication to the Company to
reassess the recoverable amount of the trademark Fireball. This assessment fndicated that the value in use,
which equals the recoverable amount, amounted to EUR 1.7 million. The carrying amount of the Fireball
trademark was higher than its recoverable amount, which resulted fn an impairment loss of EUR 2.4 million.

9. Cash, cash equivalents and other investments

Cash, cash equivalents and other investments are made up of the following:

R

5

Cash equivalents 2
Other investments due within one year !
QOther Investments due after one year Z2
Total e
K
An amount of EUR 9.8 million and EUR 12,3 million is restricted in use as at December 31, 2006, and December o
31, 2005, respectively. An amount of EUR 4.8 million of the restricted cash is non-current as at December 31, =3
2006, and December 31, 2005, respectively. e
i
Cash consist of bank balances and call deposits, cash equivalents consist of short-term deposits with an original '
and remaining maturity of less than three months and other investments copsi and deposits.
KPMG Audit
the Appendix perteining to ths lsttar of
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10. Other non-current assets

Other non-current assets are made up as follows:

R

n thou.rsa

Rent deposits

Equity investments 570 570
[ Other 3 69
Total 1,292 2,081

For a discussion of equity investments we refer to note 4 to the company financial statements.

11, Accounts receivable and other receivables

Accounts recelvable are made up as follows:

soeean,bev-sga "December 31,
in-thousand Euro 20065 |5 472005
Accounts receivable 15,619 17,129
Accounts receivable from related parties 3 25
Total 15,650 17,154

Rent deposits and prepayments 249 624
Current prepaid expenses 944 4,084
Accrued income 3,521 8,223
Other short-term receivables 1,732 1,39
Total 6,446 15,322

12. Related party transa;':tions

The Company engages in various related party transactions with both Telefénica SA and Bertelsmann AG and
thelr subsidiaries, which include revenue and expense transactions, The transactions with Bertelsmann are
booked on accounts with Bertelsmann and generally settled within thirty days of the relevant transaction. The
billing rates are set at rates, which approximate fair value.

The receivables from and liabilities to related parties are as follows:

R o T
Due from related parties
Other trade receivables (Bertelsmann AG) 31 25
Due from related parties 31 25
Due to related parties
Other trade payables (Telefénica SA) 93 53
Other trade payables (Bertelsmann AG) 72 92
Due to related parties 125 145
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The following table summarizes the amount of the transactions of the Company with related parties:

e R SR R o eee ed i nYedr ended: !
e S| B

Eirt T el o0
Revenues 999 33
Costs {2,585 (,777)
Total, net (1,586 (1,744)

The LYCOS tradename is being ticensed from a third party by LYCOS, Inc. Following the disposal of LYCOS, Inc.
by Terra Networks SA (merged with Telefénica $A), LYCOS Europe N.V. is currently in negotiations as it relates
to the licensing of the LYCOS tradename.

COn October 6, 2006, Pangora GmbH, an indirect 100 percent subsidiary of LYCOS Europe N.V., announced the
acquisition of all shares In mentasys GmbH. 27 percent of the shares of mentasys GmbH were acquired from
Bertelsmann AG for a consideration of EUR 3.8 million.

13. Compensation of key management personnel

The fixed annual salaries and bonuses for 2006 and 2005 of key managerment personnel were as follows:

e Ty TR ey R g S FIXBd/annbal Salary i }5@;@; . BONUS L L Gt
Hii'lsli.lg}warf :ﬁﬁrg%‘« F REREY Ao *&ﬂ*gﬁ%@@%&% gﬁu{k ?@%}ﬁ%ﬁ%@iﬁ%’
2006 2005 | 2006 2005°
Short-term employee benefits 833 967 229 258
Total 833 967 229 258

® Estimation / accrual based on the result achieved in 2006, finally to be determined and paid in 2007,
® Bonus paid in 2006 based on the results achieved in 2005.

Long-term incentive
By way of long-term fncentive, key management personnel was granted share option rights in accordance with
the options scheme outlined in note 16. Share option rights granted were as follows:

145,000 - - 145,000 | October 20,
2007
90,000 - - 90,000 | June 4,
2008
December 20, 6,16 170,000 - - 170,000 | December 19, e
2000 2008 r
Total 405,000 405,000 s
3
Shares ‘ Ty
Christoph Mohn owns 8,333 shares in the Company. Christoph Mohn Internet Holding GmbH (100 percent held
by Christoph Mohn) owns 37,730,000 shares in the Company as at December 31, 2006, and December 31, 2005. oy
indemnity and insurance e
The Company shall indemnify and hold harmless each member of the Management Board in accordance with e
Article 26.A of the Articles of Assocfation of the Company. o

14. Compensation of the Supervisory Board

Remuneration package KPMG Audit

No member of the Supervisory Board received remuneration in respect of their function as teAppendif dbetsining to the letter of
Supervisory Board of the Company in 2006 and 2005. Former members of the Supervisory Board did not receive

any remuneration in 2006 and 2005,

16
Options / shares FEB M%

No share options rights in the Company are granted to or acquired by members of the SupdRi#y YB3/ fication purposes
KPMG Acco s N.V.

LYCOS
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No member of the Supervisory 8oard of LYCOS Europe N.V. holds shares in the Company.

Indemnity and insurance
The Company shall indemnify and hold harmless each member of the Supervisory Board in accordance with
Article 26.A of the Articles of Association of the Company.

15. Shareholders’ equity

Issued capital

The Company’s Class AA and AB shares have been issued in registered form and may only be transferred by a
private deed. These registered shares carry special voting and binding nomination rights. Of the shareholders,
only holders of Class AA and AB registered shares have also the right to make binding nominations of the
Management Board and the Supervisory Board as well as for the positions of Chairman and Deputy Chairman of
the Supervisory Board.

The Class AA shares have a par value of EUR 0.01. Of the 250,000,000 shares authorized, 62,000,000 are fssued
and outstanding on December 31, 2006, and December 31, 2005. These shares are owned by the LE Holding
Corp., a company fully owned by Telefénica SA,

The Class AB shares have a par value of EUR 0.01, Of the 250,000,000 shares authorized, 62,000,000 are issued
and outstanding on December 31, 2006, and December 31, 2005. These shares are owned by Bertelsmann
internet Holding GmbH (24,347,400), Fireball Intemet GmbH (14,260,000} and Christoph Mohn Internet Holding
{23,392,600), also initfal shareholders and founders of the Comparty.

The Class B shares have a par value of EUR 0.01, OF the 500,000,000 shares authorized, 188,300,000 are issued
on December 31, 2006, and December 31, 2005, respectively, and 187,576,344 are outstanding on December
31, 2006, and December 31, 2005, respectively.

In fiscal year 2000, the Company issued 28,000,000 Class B shares in an Initial Public Offering. A total of 83.3
million LYCOS Europe shares have been issued in connection with the acquisition of Spray Network. A total of
18.1 million LYCOS Europe shares have been issued in connection with the acquisition of MultiMania. On
September 20, 2000, Spray Ventures and Investor Guernsey entered into a share purchase agreement with the
Company to acquire a total of 10.0 miilion shares for a total consideration of EUR 100 million. All these LYCOS
Europe shares have been issued in connection with this share purchase agreement to Spray Ventures and
Investor Guemsey. :

On February 16, 2001, Spray Ventures entered into an agreement with the Company to transfer 24,9 million
LYCOS Europe shares (representing a value of EUR 78.7 million) to the Company in setttement of amounts due
under the share purchase agreement. These shares have been recorded as treasury shares at the settlement
amount within shareholders’ equity.

The Company issued 197,862 shares and reissued 147,000 treasury shares during the year ended December 31,
2002, in connection with the exercise of employee stock options.

In October 2002, Spray Yentures transferred 3.2 million LYCOS Europe shares (representing a value of EUR 0.7

million) to the Company as indemnification for arranging the settlement with the previous shareholders of -
Massmarket AS. r';
On January 17, 2003, LYCOS Europe’s shareholders resolved at an extraordinary general meeting upon the _‘__
reduction of the Company's issued share capital by canceling 27,277,144 bearer shares held as treasury shares <
by LYCOS Europe. This resolution was effective on March 22, 2003, LYCOS Europe continues to hold 723,656 of &
its own shares recorded as treasury shares. !
i‘_:-c'
Share premium } &
The share premium concerns the income from the issuing of shares Insofar as this exceeds the nominal value of &

the shares (income above par}. Ly

Legal reserves
The Civil Code of the Methertands requires legal reserves for capitalization velopment expenses,
These reserves are deducted from the share premium,

KPMG Audit

Translation reserve the Appandix pertaining to the latter of
The translation reserve comprises ail foreign exchange differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations that are not integral to the operations of the Company. ' 5 FEB m

Unappropriated result =

The General Meeting of Shareholders will be asked to approve the appropriation of the 2006igsdtitiabkemsandn purposes
KPMG Accou NV,
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the amount of EUR 1,704 thousand to increase the other reserves/accumulated deficit,

16. Share based payments

In fiscal year 2000, the Company approved a stock option plan (“the Plan™). Under the terms of the Plan, the
Company may grant up to 10 million options to purchase shares of the Company. Options are generally granted
for a period of eight years.

These options were granted to the employees as an additional incentive to the usual salary payments. Intention
of the management was to achieve a higher identification of the employees with the Company. As at December
31, 2006, the minimum exercisable share price amounts to EUR 1.83.

Options exercisable are equal to options outstanding. Vesting is not restricted on December 31, 2006.

é‘d Vera

iR T

rd‘wx,gr
Options outstanding on January 1, 2005 1,573,650 - 13.85
Options expired (156,268) 10,70
Options cancelled (565,400) 14.87 |
Options outstanding on December 31, 2005 851,982 13.75
QOptions expired 10,332) 0.58
Options cancelled 42,500) 7.80
Options outstanding on December 31, 2006 799,150 14,24

17. Provisions

Provisions recognized are presented below: €3]

;

S
- o
Balance at January 1, 2005 B
Provisions made during the year 2005 5,866 6 b
Provisions used during the year 2005 (6,727} 0 oy
[ Provisions released during the vear 2005 (516) 0 e
Balance at December 31, 2005 1,939 1,293 :J
Provisions made during the year 2006 195 13,963 e
Provisions used during the year 2006 (969) (1,181)
Provisions released during the year 2006 (335) o
Balance at December 31, 2006 830 M
Non-current ‘ 0 12,075 I:PMG Audtt
Current 830 5| e Appendi peraining to the latter of

Other provisions comprise the estimate for the consideration of the former shareholder tf&lﬁEBd@ﬁWns AG,

which was included in other short-term Liabilities and which was paid during 2006. Please see note 6 for further

details. fnitiata for Identitication Furposes
KPMG Accounta R'A
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18. Other short-term liabilities

Other short-term liabilities comprise:

Y= ‘:_g‘l'.'-.l"-!..ﬁ._“g}
et Ef:h‘ﬂ?r
(G

I y-rgu'?@ff ',-'“E s
IWARDISat Euro 1ehsh Rt A L A

Accrual for salary and salary related cost

Accrual for marketing cost

Accrual for professional services

Other accrued expenses

Other current liabilities

Accrued expenses and other current liabibities

19. Contingencies and commitments

Minimum Lease and Rental Payments

The Company has entered into operating lease agreements in Armenia, Denmark, France, Germany, Italy, the
Netherlands and the United Kingdom.

The future, non-cancelable minimum lease and rental payments under these commitments are as follows:

L R e e R T

Due within one year

Due after one through five years

Due after five years

Total

Litigation

from time to time, the Company is subject to legal proceedings and claims in the ordinary course of business.
LYCOS Europe is currently not aware of any legal proceeding or claim that the Company believes will have,
individuatly or in the aggregate, a materially adverse effect on the Company's financial position, results of
operations or cash flows.

License agreement

LYCOS Europe and Lycos, Inc. have resumed discussions regarding the scope of certain perpetual license
agreements, including but not limited to the terms under which LYCOS Europe has licensed the LYCOS brand
and certain technotogy from Lycos, Inc. in the context of these discussions Lycos, inc. has ralsed alleged
breaches by LYCOS Europe under the relevant Search license agreements since the year 2000 and demanded
monetary compensation. Lycos, Inc. has expressed that fafling a settlement, it is prepared to terminate the
relevant perpetual license agreements. LYCCS Europe immediately and fiercely denied this claim for past
infringements.

According to an assessment of the Company and its advisors, it believes that the chance that a court would
uphold a termination notfce by Lycos, Inc. on the alleged infringements could be in general considered as
small. Therefore LYCOS Europe did not record any provision. Eventually, Lycos, Inc. withdrew its claim letter,
under reservation of all rights, and the Company and LYCOS, Inc. entered into negotiations regarding a broader
perpetual license agreement. The outcome of these negotiations, which were temporarily adjourned due to a
change of management of Lycos, Inc. and recently reopened, is still uncertain,

indemnity and Insurance
The Company shall indemnify and hold harmless each member of the Management Board and of the Supervisory

Board in accordance with Article 26.A of the Articles of Association of the Company. For this purpose amongst
others the Company has restricted cash in the amount of EUR 400 thousand as at December 31, 2006,

20. Deferred revenue

Deferred revenues are recognized in the balance sheet when involces are issued, but serfiEM@Augitbeen

completely delivered. Deferred revenues are recognized In line with the percentage of cﬂmmmmmm the letter of

16FeR 07

each contract.
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21. Other operating expenses

Other operating expenses comprise of:

; "In-thotsand. EUr0 s, o AR IR Year éfided Décember 3192006 15 i d aBE e
' Ordinary | Restructuring | Impairment Cther Total
- expenses amortization
I Sales and marketing (24,198) 3 0 (390) (24,585)
' General and administration (21,525) (14) (2,393) (920) (24,852)
. Research and development 16,799 171 0 (86) (16,714)
Total (62,522 160 (2,393) (1,396)] (66,151)
|
[
{
M.‘%F,‘ axﬁaﬁ‘:ﬁg ', j{}‘:‘t‘a‘! R TR [ e ; ‘.‘ . 3 @z 0’5% “‘; %ﬁg :,15“}1‘ ':‘:
i i nﬁﬁﬁﬁ" 'Elff%ﬁﬂg RPN GRS % : ir u‘%? 2 “g%ih M‘é‘@g&?ﬁ
i Other Total
L. amortization
Sales and marketing (23,603) {1,142) 0 @71y (25,016)
{ General and administration (20,393) {401) (236) 918) (21,948)
| Research and development (18,511 (3,526) 0 199} (22,236)
, Total (62,507 {5,069) {236) {1,388) (69,200)
E
e 22, Personnel expenses
P Personnet expenses comprise of:
{.
12 g bk W P A
Yih b e b
r \’7"’ ; 4
{ ;
{ .
e Wages and salaries
; Social security payments
L. Total
i' . The Company provides limited defined pension benefits to an officer of the Company. The pension payments
i are calculated on the basis of years of service and average income (whereby a maximum is set for calculating
" the pension payments) in the three years prior to retirement. No plan assets exist in connection with this
pension obligation.
¢ . -
[ The Company employed the following employees on a full-time equivalent basts as at December 31, 2006 and ":%r”
o as at December 31, 2005, respectively. -E
z : &
[ )
. it
- o,
5 =
7 "
[ The Netherlands 1 ] ‘
Other 59 63 |rc
_ Total 714 688
KPMG Audit
{
23, Other operating income the Appendix Pertelning to the tter of
{ During 2004, the Company entered into an amendment to the Yahoo! contract that resultTI g'l a one-time
{ payment from Yahoo which partiaily has been recorded over time as other income. 19 Fl ER m
I's fanh . -
c el "
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o 24, Income taxes

[ income tax expenses / benefits recognized include the following;

o Current income tax expenses {116) 103)
i Deferred tax benefits 95 146)
Income tax {21) (249)

i The income tax expenses differ from the amount computed by using the average statutory rate of the Company
and its subsidiaries of 34.0 percent (2005: 34.0 percent) as follows:

Expected income tax benefit at the average

I statutory tax rate 2,958 5,716
. Effect of non-deductible and non-taxable
charges (1,698) {2,735)
o Changes in loss carry-forwards, without
! recognition of deferred taxes (1,281) (2,896)
L. Changes In tax rates 0 “(334)
Income tax (21) (249)

i Deferred tax assets and liabilities are summarized as follows:

e el

i i itholisand E0FoRY
L
Deferred tax assets
e Loss carry-forward 547 660
| Property, plant and equipment 374 1,284
L Intangible assets 7,339 8,146
Less: Valuation allowance {6,699) (8,687}
P Netting_ (1,371) (1,219)
i Tota! deferred tax assets 190 184
. Deferred tax liabilities
: Property, plant and equipment 429 187 e
' Intangible assets 3,110 1,940 Ea
Netting (1,371) (1,219) i
v Total deferred tax liabilities 2,188 908 e
; [y
v In assessing the recoverability of deferred tax assets, management considers whether it is more likely than not "_
that some or all of the deferred tax assets will be realized in the foreseeable future. The ultimate realization L
{ of deferred tax assets Is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income during the periods in which =
! those temporary differences become deductible. Management considers the scheduled reversal of deferred tax o’
liabilities, projected future taxable income, and tax planning strategies in making this assessment. On o

December 31, 2006, and December 31, 2005, the Company's operating tax loss carry-forwards amount to

P approximately EUR 566.9 million and EUR 525.8 million, respectively. On 006 an amount of EUR
L 94.1 million thereof is restricted in use until 2009, Further, except for EU f the loss carry-

forwards, all of the remaining loss carry-forwards have an indefinite life.
KPMa Audit

% the Appsndix pertaining to the latter of
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25, Earnings per share

Basic eamnings per share are calculated using the weighted average number of common shares outstanding
during the year. Diluted eamings per share is similar to basic earnings per share except that the weighted
average of common shares outstanding is increased to include the number of additional common shares that
would have been outstanding if the dilutive potential common shares resulting from options and other
potentially dilutive instruments had been issued. The inclusion of options in the calculation of weighted
average common shares is anti-dilutive and therefore, there is no difference between basic and difuted eaming

per share,

Basic/diluted net loss - continued {11,068) {16,319}
operation (in thousand Euro) _

Basic/diluted net profit / (net loss) (in 1,704 (20,236)
thousand Euro) _

Weighted average shares 311,576,344 311,576,344 |
Net loss per share basic and diluted - (0.04) (0.05)
continued operation

Net profit / (net loss) per share basic 0.01 (0.06)

and diluted

26, Subsequent events
Sale of Swedish Access business

On November 23, 2006, LYCOS Europe sold its Swedish Access business to Glocalnet Scandinavia AB for a
consideration of SEK 172 million (around EUR 19 mitilon}. As at December 31, 2006 this disposal was subject to
approval of the Swedish competition authorities. On January 4, 2007 this transaction was approved by the
Swedish competition authorities and was closed on January 12, 2007.

The Swedish Access business contributes to the revenues of the discontinued operations of the Company with
an amount of EUR 39.2 million. As disclosed in note 6, the net amount of assets and liabilities to be transferred
to Glocalnet amounted to EUR 9.4 million. The estimated gain of this transaction amounts to EUR 5to 6

million, which will be considered in the first quarter of 2007.
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LYCOS Europe N.V. Company Balance Sheets

(Before proposed appropriation of result)

Intangible fixed assets
Goodwill 3 3,686 3,686
Intangible assets, net 3 0 590 |
Total intangible fixed assets 3,686 4,276
Tangible fixed assets
| Computers, furniture and fixtures 3 12
Total tangible fixed assets 3 12
" Financial fixed assets
Participating interest in group companles 4 10,795 0
Other participating interest 4 569 569
Other investments 4,5 9,803 9 802
Total financial fixed assets 21,167 10,371
Total fixed assets 24,856 14,659
Current assets
Due from related parties [ 55,787 40,376
Other receivables 0 885
Other investments 5 1,704 29,480
Cash and cash equivalents 5 58,580 . 52,406
Total current assets 116,071 123,147
Total assets 140,927 137,806
Liabilities and sharehelders’ equity
Shareholders’ equity
Issued capital 3,123 3,123
Share premium 1,587,049 1,589,584
ﬂal reserves 4,968 2,433
Treasury shares {2,052} {2,052)
Translation reserve 1,137 578
Accumulated deficit (1,467,298) (1,447,062)
Unappropriated result 1,704 (20,236)
Total shareholders’ equity 7 128,631 126,368
Provisions
Participating interest in group companies 4 0 568 !
Total provisions 0 568 I
|
Current liabilities o
Short-term debt 85 2,940 o
Due to related parties 6 10,287 6,808 Y
Accounts payable 365 146 p
Accrued expenses and other current 1,559 976 F)
liabilities oy
Total current liabilities 12,296 10,870 3
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity 140.927 137,806 o
KPMG Audit
the Appendix pertaining to the latter of
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these company financial statements . ' s FEB 2007 %
Initlals for identification purposes
KPMG Accountants N.V.
LYCOS
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falance as at January 312,300,000 | 3,123] 1,589,057| 2,960  (723,656)| (2,052) 172{ (1,401,586)| (45,476)| 146,198
Movement capitalized
development expenses 527 (527) 0
Appropriation of the net
result of previous year (45.476) 45,476 0
Translation gain 406 706
Net loss (0,236)] _ (20,236)
Salance o at December 312,300,000 | 3,123| 1,589,584| 2,433  (723,656)| (2,052) 578| (1,447,062)] (20,236)| 126,368
Movement capitalized
development expenses (2,535) 2,535 0
Appropriation of the net
result of previous year (20,236) 20,236 ]
Translatfon gain 550 559
Net profit 1,704 1,704
g:h'z‘ggs” at December 7 {312,300,000 | 3,123| 1,587,049] 4,968 (723,656)| (2,052)|  1,137| (1,467,298) 1,704| 128,631
;
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these company financial statements QEE]
E KPMG Audit
the Appendix pertaining to the fetter of
initiats for identification purposes
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements

Stgnificant accounting policies

Acquisition and disposal of subsidiaries
Intangible fixed assets

Financial fixed assets

Cash, cash equivalents, and other investments
Due to / from related parties

Shareholders’ equity
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1. Significant accounting policies

LYCOS Europe N.V. (“LYCOS Europe” or the “Company™ / ISIN NL0000233195) is one of the leading European
Internet destinations operating a pan-European network of websites in eight languages. The Company's
combination of portal and communication, communities, hosting and domain names, and shopping addresses a
wide range of target groups. The Company commenced operations in the year 1997, and the companies existing
before 2000 were reorganized as subsidiaries of LYCOS Europe N.V. in January 2000. The registered office of
the Company is In Haarlem, the Netherlands (LYCOS Europe N.V., Richard Holkade 36, 2033 PZ Haarlem, the
Netherlands).

a. General

The company financial statements are part of the 2006 financial statements of LYCOS Europe N.V. With
reference to the company income statement of LYCOS Eurgpe N.V., use has been made of the exemption
pursuant to Section 402 of Book 2 of the Netherlands Civil Code.

b. Principles for the measurement of assets and ilabilities and the determination of the result

For setting the principles for the recognition and measurement of assets and liabilities and determination of
the result for its company financial statements, LYCOS Europe N.V. makes use of the option provided in section
2:362 (8) of the Netherlands Civil Code. This means that the principles for the recognition and measurement of
assets and liabilities and determination of the result (hereinafter referred to as principles for recognition and
measurement) of the company financial statements of LYCOS Europe N.V. are the same as those applied for the
consolidated EU-IFRS financial statements. Participating interests, over which significant influence is exercised,
are stated on the basis of the equity method. These consolidated EU-JFRS financial statements are prepared
according to the standards laid down by the International Accounting Standards Board and adopted by the
European Unfon (hereinafter referred to as EU-IFRS). Please see note 1 in the consolidated financial statements
for a description of these principles.

The share in the result of participating interests consists of the share of LYCOS Europe N.V. in the result of
these participating interests. Results on transactions, where the transfer of assets and liabilities between
LYCOS Europe N.V, and its participating interests and mutually between participating interests themselves, are
not incorporated insofar as they can be deemed to be unreatized.

2. Acquisition and disposal of subsidiaries

Acquisitions and disposals by the group of subsidiaries of the Company are explained in note 6 of the notes to
the consolidated financial statements.
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3. Intangible fixed assets

Wﬂ‘b‘_‘; = F:
EUE

ok et [ rightsiul
Cost
| Balance as at January 1, 2003 879,553 6,649 1,860 888,062
Balance as at December 31, 2005 879,553 6,649 1,860 888,062
Disposal 0 (5,249) 0 {5,249)
Balance as at December 31, 2006 879,553 1,400 1,860 882,813
| Amortization and impairment iosses
“Balance as at January 1, 2005 {875,867) {5,960) (1,819} (883,645)
Amortization charge 0 (99) {41) {140)
Balance as at December 31, 2005 (875,867) {6,059 (1,860) (883,786)
Amortization charge 0 (74 0 (74}
Disposal 0 4,733 0 4,733
Balance as at December 31, 2006 {(875,867) (1,400} (1,860)|  (879,127)
Carrying amounts
Balance as at December 31, 7005 3,686 590 0 4,276
Balance as at December 31, 2006 3,686 0 0 3,686

In the second quarter 2006, LYCOS Europe performed the annual impairment test for goodwill acquired in
business combinations. The impairment test indicated that no impairment was required for the period ended

December 31, 2006.

Amortization periods are as disclosed in note 1 of the consolidated financial statements.

4. Financial fixed assets

uﬁkﬁi 3 «;’% ?&,&L  [EAgCofr

Balance as at December 31, 2005 (568) 569 9,802 9.803

Movements:

Net change 1] 0 1 1

Capital contributions 10,683 0 0 10,683

Liquidation {(1,248) 0 0 {1,248

Result from subsidiarles and equity 1,354 0 0 1,354 -

investments j:

Disposal (13) Q [ {13 =

Translation gain 587 0 0 587 =
5

Balance as at December 31, 2006 10,795 569 9,803 21,167 "j*

The subsidiaries are included against their negative net asset value as the Company has the firm intention to
continue to provide such financial support as is necessary to enable its wholly-owned subsidiaries to continue

as a going concern,

Subsidiaries included in participating interest in group companies are disclosed in the consolidated financial

statements in note 3.
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§ Other participating interest includes the following equity investments:

Seznam.cz, a.5. 30.0% Czech Republic Prague
Best of Media SA (formerly: Best of 11.9% France Nanterre
i Micro SA)

Investment in Seznam.cz, a.s.

Although the Company owns 30 percent of the share capital in Seznam.cz, a.s. (“Seznam”), the Company can
not exercise any influence on Seznam.cz. The Company is not represented in the board of directors, does not
participate in policy-making processes, does not have any material transactions with Seznam and does not have
any interchange of managerial personnel between the Company and Seznam,

Since acquisition, the Company has accounted for fts interest in Seznam as an available-for-sale financial
instrument. As the shares do not have a quoted market price in an active market, the variability in the range of
i reasonable fafr value estimates is considered significant and the probabilities of the various estimates within

5 the range can not be reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair vatue, the shares are measured at cost.

' The carrying amount of this investment amounts to EUR 69 thousand.

I The financial information available to the Company for 2004 and 2005 is presented below.,

TRty ey T TR
i
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Revenues 25,241 15,580
Net profit for the period 6,668 2,976
Shareholders equity 13,263 6,249

P

The Company expects a net profit for S5eznam.cz for the 12 month perfod ended December 31, 2006 of EUR
12.9 million.

PR,

[ investment in Best of Media SA
! Since acquisition, the Company has accounted for its interest in Best of Media SA (“Best of Media”) as an
B available-for-sale financial instrument. As the shares do not have a quoted market price in an active market,
the varfability in the range of reasonable fair value estimates is considered significant and the probabilities of
[ the various estimates within the range can not be reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair value, the
' shares are measured at cost. The carrying amount of this investment amounts to EUR 500 thousand.

The financial information available to the Company for 2004 and 2005 is presented below.

Net loss for the period
Shareholders equity

it

The Company expects a net result for Best of Media for the 12 month period ended December 31, 2006 of EUR
0 million.
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5. Cash, cash equivalents and other investments

Cash, cash equivalents and other investments comprise the following:

Cash 26,580 30177
Cash eguivalents 19,500 22,219
Other investments dug within one year 12,500 29,480
Other investments due after one year 9,803 9,802
Total 68,383 91,688

An amount of EUR 9.8 miltion and EUR 12.3 million s restricted in use as at December 31, 2006, and December
31, 2005, respectively. An amount of EUR 4.8 million of the restricted cash is non-current as at December 31,
2006, and December 31, 2009, respectively,

Cash consists of bank balances and call deposits, cash equivalents consist of short-term deposits with an
original and remafning maturity of less than three months and other investments consist of bonds and deposits.

6. Due to/ from related parties

’3%:5_:&#‘:"'#‘5‘%% 3 :ﬁ', “"‘*”&' e DR 43 : o 1%3%
Due from related parties 42,223 27,277
Subordinated loan to related parties 12,617 12,617 |
Accrued interest on subordinated loan 947 482
Due to related parties 10,287 6,808
Total, net 45,500 33,568

7. Shareholders’ equity

Issued capital

The Company’s Class AA and AB shares have been issued in registered form and may only be transferred by a
private deed, These registered shares carry special voting and binding romination rights. Of the shareholders,
only holders of Class AA and AB registered shares have also the right to make binding nominations of the
Management Board and the Supervisory Board as well as for the positions of Chairman and Deputy Chairman of
the Supervisory Board.

The Class AA shares have a par value of EUR 0.01. Of the 250,000,000 shares authorized, 62,000,000 are issued
and outstanding on December 31, 2006, and December 31, 2005, These shares are owned by the LE Holding
Corp., a company fully owned by Telefénica SA.

The Class AB shares have a par value of EUR 0.01, Of the 250,000,000 shares authorized, 62,000,000 are issued
and outstanding on December 31, 2006, and December 31, 2005. These shares are owned by Bertelsmann
Intermet Holding GmbH (24,347,400), Fireball Internet GmbH (14,260,000) and Christoph Mohn Intemet Holding
{23,392,600), also initial shareholders and founders of the Company.

The Class B shares have a par value of EUR 0.01. Of the 500,000,000 shares authorized, 188,300,000 are issued
on December 31, 2006, and December 31, 2005, respectively, and 187,576,344 are outstanding on December
31, 2006, and December 31, 2003, respectively.

In fiscal year 2000, the Company issued 28,000,000 Class B shares in an Initial Public Offering, A total of 83.3
million LYCOS Europe shares have been issued in connection with the acquisition of Spray Network. A total of

18.1 million LYCOS Europe shares have been issued in connection with the qeequisit uttiMania. On
September 20, 2000, Spray Ventures and Investor Guemsey entered into a agreement with the

Company to acquire a total of 10.0 million shares for a total consideration
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Europe shares have been issued in connection with this share purchase agreement to Sme%j pek diing to the of

Investor Guemsey.

On February 16, 2001, Spray Ventures entered into an agreement with the Company to tra tp myM
LYCOS Europe shares (representmg a value of EUR 78.7 million) to the Company in settlemen

under the share purchase agreement. These shares have been recorded as treasury shares at the settlement
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amount within shareholders’ equity.

The Company issued 197,B62 shares and reissued 147,000 treasury shares during the year ended December 31,
2002, in connection with the exercise of employee stock options.

In October 2002, Spray Ventures transferred 3.2 million LYCOS Europe shares (representing a value of EUR 0.7
million) to the Company as indemnification for arranging the settlement with the previous shareholders of
Massmarket AS.

On January 17, 2003, LYCOS Europe’s sharehotders resolved at an extraordinary general meeting upon the
reduction of the Company’s issued share capital by canceling 27,277,144 bearer shares held as treasury shares
by LYCOS Europe. This resolution was effective on March 22, 2003. LYCOS Europe continues to hold 723,656 of
fts own shares recorded as treasury shares.

Share premium
The share premium concemns the income from the issuing of shares insofar as this exceeds the nominat value of
the shares (income above par).

Legal reserves
The Civil Code of the Netherlands requires legal reserves for capitalization of internal development expenses.
These reserves are deducted from the share premium.

Translation reserve
The translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations that are not integral to the operations of the Company.

Unappropriated result 7
The General Meeting of Shareholders will be asked to approve the appropriation of the 2006 profit after tax in
the amount of EUR 1,704 thousand to increase the other reserves/accumulated deficit,

Stock options

In fiscal year 2000, the Company approved a stock option plan (“the Plan”). Under the terms of the Plan, the
Company may grant up to 10 million options to purchase shares of the Company. Options are generally granted
for a period of efght years. These options were granted to the employees as an additional incentive to the
usual salary payments. Intention of the management was to achieve a higher identification of the employees
with the Company. The outstanding and exercisable options are disclosed in note 16 of the consolidated
financial statements.

8. Contingencies and commitments

Guarantees

The Company has issued letters of guarantee and support to several of its subsidiaries. Furthermore the
Company has issued several guarantees to its suppliers and its subsidiaries suppliers during the ordinary course
of its business. Guarantees outstanding as at December 31, 2006 amount to EUR 2.3 miltion.

Joint and several liability o
In accardance with article 403 Book 2 of the Netherlands Civil Code the Company has assumed joint and several I
liability for all legal transactions carried out by its Dutch group company LYCOS Netherlands B.V. s

Fiscal unity ‘ )
Since January 1, 2002, LYCOS Europe N.V. and LYCOS Netherlands B.V. form a fiscal unity for corporate tax; g
the standard conditions stipulate that each of the companies is liable for the corporation tax payable by all
companies belonging to the fiscal entity.

Indemnity and insurance ¥
The Company shall indemnify and hold harmless each member of the Management Board and of the Supervisory o
Board in accordance with Article 26.A of the Articles of Association of the Company. For this purpose amongst )
others the Company has restricted cash in the amount of EUR 400 thousand as at December 31, 2006.

9. Loss from subsidiaries and equity investments KPMG Audit
This concems the share of LYCOS Europe N.V. in the results of its participating interests, g;a MH %?R&WHF to the letter of

of EUR 1,354 thousand (2005: EUR (20,911) thousand) concerns group companies.
16 FER 200 _z2—
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In assessing the recoverability of deferred tax assets, management considers whether it is more likely than not
that some or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. The ultimate realization of deferred tax assets
is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income during the periods in which those temporary
differences become deductibie. Management considers the scheduled reversal of deferred tax liabillties,
projected future taxable income, and tax planning strategies in making this assessment. On December 31,
2006, and December 31, 2005, the Company's operating tax loss carry-forwards amount to approximately EUR
83.1 million. EUR 76.4 million of these loss carry-forwards expires after 2011.

11. Remuneration of the Management Board

Remuneration package

Every year, the Supervisory Board fixes the remuneration package of the members of the Management Board.,
As at January 1, 2006, Mr. Christoph Mohn's remuneration package was raised by 2.0 percent in line with the
Company’s overall policy and in compensation of inftation. '

Fixed annual salary and short-term incentive (bonus) .

Management Board members receive a fixed annual salary that is in line with their position in the Company as
soon as they join the Board. The fixed salary is adjusted on January 1 of any year. In addition, an annual
performance-based bonus is fixed and reviewed after completion of the annual report for the respective fiscal
year by the Supervisory Beard. The bonus consists of a target / plan bonus and a total maximum bonus. In
2006, the maximum bonus potential was 36 percent of the annual base salary. The bonus payment is subject to
achievement of financial (EBIT result vs, business plan} and strategic (market share development) performance
targets. The bonus amount for the fiscal year 2005 was fixed and paid in April 2006. The bonus amount for the
fiscal year 2006 has not been determined yet at the time that this report Is published and will be established
by the Supervisory Board in 2007.

The fixed annual salaries and bonuses for 2006 and 2005 of the Management Board were as follows:

To be
Christoph Mohn 303,795 297,838 | determined 70,000

T Based on the result achieved in 2006 and therefore determinable and payable in 2007. The bonus amount for
2006 is expected to be in the range of EUR 10 thousand to EUR 63 thousand.
® Bonus paid in 2006 based on the results achieved in 2005.

Long-term incentive

By way of long-term incentive, Management Board members are granted share option rights in accordance with
the options scheme outlined in note 16 of the consolidated financial statements. The options currently held by
Christoph Mohn (sole Board member) are listed below:

h?%‘% ‘

ercisen(s
n

December 20, 6.16 100,000 - 100,000 | December 19,
2000 2008
Total 285,000 - - 285,000

Apart from the above-mentioned management options, the Management Board does not possess any options on
the Company,

Shares ’
Christoph Mohn owns 8,333 shares in the Company. Christoph Mohn Intemet Holding GHKHMGJMBM held

by Christoph Mohn) owns 37,730,000 shares in the Company as at December 31, 2006, att® Beperitensttainingan. the etter of

Total remuneration
The total remuneration (including pension costs and other commitments} of Management'BﬁaFdEarm
amounted to EUR 0.4 million in 2006 (2005: EUR 0.4 million). Former members of the Management Board di
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not receive any remuneration in 2006 and 2005,
Indemnity and insurance

The Company shall indemnify and hold harmless each member of the Management Board in accordance with
Article 26.A of the Articles of Association of the Company.

12. Remuneration of the Supervisory Board

Remuneration package
No member of the Supervisory Board recelved remuneration in respect of their function as member of the
r : Supervisory Board of the Company in 2006 and 2005. Former members of the Supervisory Board did not receive
i any remuneration in 2006 and 2005.

Options / shares
No share options rights in the Company are granted to or acquired by members of the Supervisory Board.
No member of the Supervisory Board of LYCOS Europe N.V. holds shares in the Company.

Indemnity and insurance
The Company shall indemnify and hold harmless each member of the Supervisory Board in accordance with
Article 26.A of the Articles of Association of the Company.

Haarlem, the Netherlands
January 26, 2007

Christoph Mohn
[ Chief Executive Officer
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| Other Information

Class AA shares and Class AB shares
The Company's Class AA and AB shares have been issued in registered form and may only be transferred by a
private deed. These registered shares carry special voting and binding nomination rights. Of the shareholders,

i only holders of Class AA and AB registered shares have also the right to make binding nominations of the
E Management Board and the Supervisory Board as well as for the positions of Chalrman and Deputy Chalrman of
. the Supervisory Board,

f ) The Class AA shares are owned by LE Holding Corp., a company fully owned by Telefénica SA.
i

""" The Class AB shares are owned by Bertelsmann Intemet Holding GmbH (24,347,400}, Fireball Internet GmbH
(14,260,000) and Christoph Mohn Intermet Hotding (23,392,600).

Profit appropriation provision

The appropriation of profits takes place in accordance with Article 18 of the Articles of Association. Under this
provision the profit for the year as stated in the income statements is at the unrestricted disposal of the

i General Meeting of Shareholders.

Appropriation of result for the year 2006
o The General Meeting of Shareholders will be asked to approve the appropriation of the 2006 profit after tax in
i the amount of EUR 1,704 thousand to increase the other reserves/accumulated deficit.

independent Auditor’s Report
pe We refer to the accompanying independent Auditor's Repart as set forth on the foliowing page,
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To: The Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of Lycos Europe N.V.
Auditors' report

Report on the financial statements

Introduction

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Lycos Europe N.V,, Haarlem, the Netherlands, as
set out on pages 21 to 61. The financial statements consist of the consolidated financlal statements and the
company financial statements. The consolidated financial statements comprise the consolidated balance sheet
as at 31 December 2006, the income statement, the statement of cash flows and the statement of
shareholders’ equity for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory notes. The company financial statements comprise the company balance sheet as at 31 December
2006, the company income statement for the year then ended and the notes,

Management's responsibility

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with Intemational Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union and with Part 9 of Book 2 of
the Netherlands Civil Code and for the preparation of the report to the shareholders in accordance with Part 9
of Book 2 of the Netherlands Civil Code. This responsibility includes: designing, implementing and maintaining
internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies;
and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on cur audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with Dutch taw. This law requires that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free from material

misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control, An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

Opinion with respect to the consolidated financial statements

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of Lycos
Europe N.V. as at 31 December 2006, and of its result and its cash flow for the year then ended in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union and with Part 9 of Book 2 of
the Netherlands Civil Code.

Opinion with respect to the company financial statements

1 ‘l“ 1
In our opinfon, the company financial statements give a true and fair yag F H ancial position of Lycos
Europe N.V. as at 31 December 2006, and of its result for the vear then ended" cMam Part 9 of
Book 2 of the Netherlands Civil Code.
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Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Pursuant to the legal requirement under Z:393 sub 5 part e of the Netherlands Civil Code, we report, to the
extent of our competence, that the report to the shareholders s consistent with the financial statements as
required by 2:391 sub 4 of the Netherlands Civil Code.

. Amstelveen, 26 January 2007
] KPMG ACCOUNTANTS N.V.

[ M. Tubbergen RA
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{ Quarterly Financial information

(unaudited)
{(exCEpY gar share data) i
Revenues *
Loss from operations * (13,067) {13,4453) {10,504) (11,295)
Net loss (11,913) {14,404) {9,049) {10,110)
Net loss per share basic and
diluted in Euro (0.04) {0.05) (0.03 (0.03)
EBITDA ™ (9,645) (11,928) (7,169) (5,485)
r
(..
i,‘
I Loss from operations {8,644) (8,360) {1,520) (166
Net loss {8,069} (8,390) {2,046) {1,730)
! Net loss per share basic and {0.03) (0.03) (0.01) ©.01)
L. diluted in Euro ___
EBITDA ™ (6,194) (6,264) 410 1,709
[
|
;-
2
" Loss from operations 2,336) (718) (4,853) {5,431
Net profit / (net loss) 2,032) (242) 9,144 {5,166)
I Net profit / {net loss} per share (0.01) 0.00 0.03 (0.02)
basic and diluted in Euro
= EBITDA™ (834) 777 {3,379) {1,192)
‘ .
Lo
' e
[ ® Not restated, _ ]
i 1 EBITDA is Eamnings Before Interest, Taxes, Depreciation, Amortization and Impairment, which is calculated =
by excluding the depreciation, amortization and impairment from the Company’s operating loss. The i
Company considers EBITDA an important indicator of the performance of its business including the ability to B
- provide cash flows to fund capital expenditures. EBITDA, however, should not be considered an alternative Pt
{ to operating result or net result as an indicator of the performance of the Company, or as an alternative to o
cash flows provided by {used in) operating activities as a measure of liquidity, in each case determined in B
_ accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). ":-II
3
Ei KPMGQG Audit
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Report of the Supervisory Board

The Management Board of LYCOS Europe N.V. kept the Supervisory Board well informed about the situation and
course of business at the Company during the period under its review, January 1, 2006, to December 31, 2006.
The course of business was discussed on the basis of monthly reports containing comparative figures relating to
the budget, sales and traffic trends, developments in the regional markets and marketing expenditures. In
addition, the Supervisory Board engaged in extensive discussions with the Management Board on fundamental
issues of corporate policy and significant business developments and strategy in joint meetings with the
Supervisory Board and in regular telephone calls, The Supervisory Board was thus able to conclude that
business was being managed properly.

As of September 30, 2006, Lydia Lux-Schmitt, CFO, left LYCOS Europe to pursue other opportunities. The
Supervisory Board thanks Mrs. Lux-Schmitt for her contribution to the development of the Company and wishes
her all the best in the future,

Actlvities

iL.YCOS Europe’s Supervisory Board's responsibility is to supervise the policy of the Company’s Management
Board and the general affairs of LYCOS Europe and its business as well as to assist the Company’s Management
Board by providing advice. In doing so, LYCOS Europe’s Supervisory Board is guided by the Company's interests
and takes into account the relevant interests of its stakeholders. LYCOS Europe’s Supervisory Board is
responsible for the quality of its own functioning. The Supervisory Board was involved in resolutions as and
where required by the Company’s Articles of Association and By-Laws, We specifically discussed the strategic
orientation of the Company and (ent it our unreserved support. We also discussed the Company’s intemal risk
management and control systems.

During 2006, the Supervisory Board met four times and adopted several resolutions outside of meetings. Two of
its members have been frequently absent at meetings. As part of its efforts in the field of corporate
governance the Supervisory Board has decided to meet once a year without the Management Board being
present to discuss the functioning of the Supervisory Board and of the members of the Management Board. In
2006, a meeting of this kind took place in November. Furthermore, the Chairman of the Supervisory Board is
regularly discussing actual business developments with the CEQ.

Audit Committee

During 2006, the Supervisory Board constituted an Audit Committee, which was chaired by Mr. Rovira de Ossd
and which further consisted of Mr. Buch and Mr. Richter. A further explanation on the purpose and functioning
of the Audit Committee can be found in the Corporate Governance section of this annual report on page 15.
During 2006, the Audit Committee met four times. None of the Audit Committee members Is designated as such
as a “financial expert” within the meaning of that term under the Dutch Corporate Governance Code. The
Supervisory Board does believe however that the expertise of the members of the Audit Committee taken
together is sufficlent for the Supervisory Board tec discharge its supervisory duties in financial and audit-related
matters,

Remuneration Committee

Also during 2006 the Supervisory Board constituted a Remuneration Committee which is chalred by Mr. Bohnert,
Mr. Richter is a member of the Remuneration Committee. Mr. Mateu was a member of the Remuneration
Committee until his resignation on March 23, 2006. During 2008, no replacement for Mr. Mateu in the .
Remuneration Committee was appointed. A further explanation on the purpose and functioning of the
Remuneration Committee can be found in the Corporate Governance section of this annual report on page 15.
The Remuneration Committee met once in 2006.

Remuneration of Management Board members i
In 2006 and in accordance with 1ts standing policies the Supervisory Board has decided to grant & bonus to the i
CEO, Mr. Mohn, for the fiscal year 2005. This bonus was based on previously determined performance criteria. Isd
Furthermore, as at January 1, 2006, Mr. Mohn's remuneration package was raised by 2.0 percent in tine with 3
the Company’s overall policy and in compensation of inflation. For an overview of Mr. Mohr's remuneration sy
during 2006 and the performance criteria we apply, see page 58 of this annual report. 4~‘i
The relative importance of the variable component of his remuneration is a maximum of 36 percent of his s
annual base salary or 27 percent of the maximum total remuneration. Thjsfptio was chosen to provide a

reasonable high amount and relative incentive for the achievement of th ﬂ‘ﬁ' e 5-‘"-' -term business results,

For the fiscal year 2005, the bonus made up 24 percent of the base saladf o™ FEPHL of the total annual
remuneration. The bonus payment is subject to achievement of financial (EBIT result vi{ R®ecA i) and

strategic (market share development) performance targets. These performance criterighy t0 the letter of
they reflect the main concerns of our business, i.e. to achieve profitability in the near future and to gain

market share to increase short-term revenues and ensure medium-term growth. In additraJ g{

the aforementioned salary and bonus components, the Company provides Mr. Mohn with B ﬂem%ion

plan and an accident insurance. The pension arrangement. is based on the Bertelsmann pension plan dated July ﬂ
1, 1986. Mr. Mohn acquires a claim to 0.8 percent of his pensionable income per year g ﬁwmm
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maximum of 20 percent of his average remuneration during the last three years before receiving pension
benefits {maximum pensionable income EUR 204,000). His years of previous employment with Bertelsmann
(May 1, 1992 until Juty 31, 1994, and November 1, 1996 until April 30, 1997) are taken into account for the
catculation of pension benefits. Provisions for this pension entitlement are made accordingly. For the year
ended December 31, 2006 the amount was EUR 0.1 miltion.

Mr. Mohn's employment contract with LYCQS Europe GmbH under German law establishes a notice period of
three months for both parties.

Furthermore, the Supervisory Board, assisted by its Remuneration Committee, has prepared a remuneration
policy for the remuneration of members of our Management Board during 2005 and thereafter which has been
adopted at our 2005 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders. The Remuneration Policy can be found at page

68,

The consotidated financial statements, notes to the consolidated financial statements and management report
of LYCOS Europe N.V. for the fiscal year extending from January 1, 2006, to December 31, 2006, as submitted
by the Management Board were prepared in the form of a consolidated report in accordance with IFRS. These
financial statements were audited by KPMG Accountants N.V. (Amsterdam) and an unqualified audit opinion
was issued. The Supervisory Board has accepted and approved the results of the audit and, subsequent to its
own review of the financial statements, the notes to the financial statements and the management report, has
no objections to it. The Supervisory Board approves the financial reports as drawn up by the Management
Board, and it is therefore deemed approved.

We wish the entire staff and the Management Board of LYCOS Europe N.V. every success for the upcoming
business year.
Amsterdam, February 16, 2007

Prof. Dr. Frank Jilrgen Richter
Chalrman of the Supervisory Board
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Supervisory Board
(During the year ended December 31, 2006)

Prof. Dr. Frank Jiirgen Richter (1941, German national)

Chairman of the Supervisory Board for the whole year ended December 31, 2006
Chairman of DELTA entertainment Inc., Los Angeles, Cal. ;
Member of the Supervisory Board since November 30, 2001, current term ending in 2010

Dr. Dieter Ulrich Bohnert {1948, German national}

Member of the Supervisory Board for the whole year ended December 31, 2006

Senifor Partner Heuking Kiihn Liler Wojtek

Member of the Supervisory Board of APO Data-Service GmbH

Member of the Supervisory Board of Schneider Electric GmbH

Member of the Supervisory Board since November 30, 2001, current term ending in 2010

José Fransisco Mateu Isturiz (1954, Spanish national)
Member of the Supervisory Board until March 23, 2006

Senior Yice Prestdent Legal and Corporate Affairs Altadis S.A.
Member of the Board of Directors of Amper 5.A,

Rolf Eberhard Buch (1965, German national}

Member of the Supervisory Board for the whole year ended December 31, 2006

Chairman of the Executive Board of arvato direct services and Member of the Board of Directors of arvato AG
and directorships of arvato affiliates

Member of the Supervisory Board since May 22, 2003, current term ending in 2007

Elias Rodriguez-Vina (1960, Spanish national)

Member of the Supervisory Board since May 24, 2006

Chairman of the Management Board and Chief Executive Officer of Endemol N.V,
Member of the Board of Catalana d’ Iniciatives, SRC, S.A.

Member of the Supervisory Board since May 24, 2006, current termn ending in 2010

Juan Rovira de Ossé (1955, Spanish national)

Member of the Supervisory Board for the whole year ended December 31, 2006

Since July 2006, Deputy General Manager of Telefonica S.A.

Member of the Board of Banco Inversis Net. 5.A. until May 2006

Member of the Board of Geonet Territorial, S.A.

Member of the Supervisory Board of Terra Networks Mexico Holding, 5.a. de C.Y. and directorships of Terra
Networks Mexico affiliates until December 2006

Member of the Board of Directors of Azeler Automocion S.A.

Managing Director of Terra LYCOS Holding, B.V.

Member of the Supervisory Board since November 30, 2001, current term ending in 2610

Luls Velo Pulg-Durdn (1960, Spanish national)

Member of the Supervisory Board for the whole year ended December 31, 2006
Executive Vice President of Media Projects at Telefdnica de Espafia S.A.U. )
Member of the Steering Committee of Telefénica de Espaiia S.A.U. I
Member of the Supervisory Board since May 18, 2005, current term ending in 2008 o

(O
Remuneration of Supervisory Board Members l:;_
-+
Remuneration package ' Q
No member of the Supervisory Board received remuneration in respect of their function as member of the (]
Supervisory Board of the Company. )
No share option rights in the Company are granted to or acquired by members of Board.
Shares ;PMG Audit
8 Appendi ine
No member of the Supervisory Board of LYCOS Europe N.V. holds shares in the Company. Ppendix pertaining to the latter
16 FEB 2007
?(1 Itals for identitication purposag
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Remuneration Policy

Set forth below is the policy on remuneration of the members of the Management Board of LYCOS Europe N.V.
{also referred to as "we", "our” or "us") as adopted by the Company's Annual General Meeting of Shareholders.

The amount and structure of the remuneration which our Management Board members receive from us for their
work shall be such that qualified and expert managers can be recruited and retained.

The remuneration structure, including severance pay, if any, pension costs and other commitments is such that
it promotes our interests in the medium- and long-term, does not encourage a Management Board member to
act fn his own interests with disregard to our interests and does not “reward” failure of Management Board
members upon termination of employment or service. The relevant employment market, the development of
results and the development of the share price as well as other developments relevant to us, such as those in
the mark?t, are factors that should be considered when determining the amount and structure of
remuneration,

The members of the Management Board shall receive a fixed salary, which in general is reviewed and
potentially adjusted on 1 January of any year. The members of the Management Board are furthermore
entitled to variable remuneration consisting of a short-term incentive bonus scheme and the granting of share
option rights as long-term incentive. The variable part of the remuneration is designed to support our strategy
for valuation creation and shareholder alignment and to strengthen the board members' commitment to us and
our objectives.

The bonus scheme shall at {east contain elements relating to our financial performance and the Group's
strategic development. In addition, specfal bomuses can be granted if deemed appropriate by the Supervisory
Board. .

Share options to Management Board members can be granted under our 2000 employee stock option plan (as
amended from time to time) which options generally shall be granted for a perfod of eight years.

Overall, the variable part of the remuneration must be linked to previously-determined, measurable and
influenceable targets. However, deviations from this general rule are permitted where the Supervisory Board
decides the same Is justified by the status of a Management Board member as an employee of us (where
applicable), for instance (without limitation) with respect to grants under our 2000 employee stock option
plan. The variabte part of a Management Board members remuneration and that person's personal investment
in us (If any) taken together must provide for both short-term and long-term elements of incentives.

Members of the Management Board may have the benefit of other periodically paid compensation or benefits in
kind. These compensation elements can comprise elements based on historic contractual benefits or
compensation elements based on local practices. Typical examples are a company car or an allowance for
medical assurance,

The pension policy is that pension arrangements should be in line with local practice in the country of
residence of the members of the Management Board and the pension benefits provided should be consistent
with those provided by other multinational companies in those countries,

We do not grant advances or guarantees to Management Board members, except within the framework of its
usual business operations, on conditions which apply to all employees and with the approval of the Supervisory
Board. The granting of loans to Management Board members is not permitted.

The maximum remuneration in the event of dismissal is one year's salary (the fixed remuneration component).
However, if the maximum of one year's fixed salary would be manifestly unreasonable for the Management
Board member who fs dismissed during his first term of office, such board member shall be eligible for a
severance pay not exceeding twice the annual salary. In addition, where the Management Board member is
retained under an employment contract or is internally promoted from employee to Management Board
member we will respect the general rules of law applicable to the employment contract and local practice
with respect to termination of employment contracts, which may result ination payments,
depending on the situation.
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Glossary

The following explanatory notes are meant to assist the reader of our annual report in comprehending the
terms used in this report or are used in connection with the Internet business in general,

Above the fold

The section of a web page that is visible without scrolling.

Access

Connection to the Intemet,

Ad impression

A single display or view of an online advertisement such as a banner, box ad, button ad or text link.

Ad server

A high-end computer used to manage and control advertising resources within the advertising network.
Advertising network

A network representing many Web sites In selling advertising, allowing media buyers to reach broad audiences
easily through run-of-category and run-of-network buys.

Affiliate

The publisher/salesperson in an affillate marketing relationship.

b2b

Business that sells products or provides services to other businesses.

b2c

Business that sells products or provides services to the end-user consumers.

Bandwidth .

Speed of online data transmission via the Intemet. LYCOS Germany and Spray Sweden offer tailor-made broad-
band and narrow-band Internet access packages.

Banner ad

A graphical web advertising unit, typically measuring 468 pixels wide and 60 pixels tall or 234 pixels wide and
60 pixels tall (e.g. 468x60; 234 x60).

Blog (Weblog)

A frequent, chronological publication of personal thoughts and web links in the Intemet (also known as web
log). LYCOS Europe launched a new blog service called “JubiiBlog” in October 2005.

Bookmark

A link stored in a web browser for future reference.

Channel

Content area within an Internet portal that combines latest news of a particular topic, shopping tips and links
to related sites (e.g. LYCOS Auto). Channels aggregate distinctive target groups and belong to the most
prectous online advertising inventory.

Chat
Online conversation with other (personally known or unknown) users in real-time via the Internet. The LYCOS

Chat is the biggest chat of its kind in Europe with several millions of users. Yahoo! Europe as weil as T-Cnline

are licensees of the LYCOS Chat.

Click-through

The process of clicking through an online advertisement to the advertiser’s destination.

Conversion rate iz
The percentage of visitors who take a desired action, 8=y
Community 1
Group of Internet users that are interested in similar topics. LYCOS Europe is one of the leading providers of )
community services e.g. with products such as LYCOS Chat, LYCOS Tripod and Jubiiblogs. £
Cookle Y
information stored on a users computer by a web site so preferences are remembered on future requests. y
CPA

Cost-per-action/acquisition - online advertising payment model in which payment is based solely on gualifying
actions such as sales or registrations.

cPc e
Cost per click - the cost or cost-equivaient paid per click-through.

CPM
Cost per thousand impressions.
CPO KPMG Audit

Cost rtunity.
ctr);sspfu: ecg:apo unity the Appandix pertalning to the Istter of

The idea of using online as well as offline media (TV, radio, print) for your advertising campaign to increase
campaign success and brand awareness. » m

Click-through rate - the average number of click-throughs per hundred ad impressions, expreﬁﬁgba

a
percentage. ?Of identification purposas
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Domain name

A domain name locates an organization or other entity on the Intermet. For example, the domain name

www. lycos-europe.eu locates an Intemnet address for “lycos-europe.eu” at a particular host server named

"www". The "eu” part of the domain name reflects the purpose of the organization or entity (in this example,

"European Union™) and is called the top-level domain name. The “lycos-europe” part of the domain name

defines the organization or entity and together with the tap-level is called the second-level domain name,

DSL

Digital subscriber line - it accelerates online data transmission by factor 48 compared to standard {SDN

connections. LYCOS Germany and Spray Sweden offer tailor-made DSL-Intemet access packages.

EBIT

Earnings before interest and taxes.

EBITDA

Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization.

EBT

Earnings before taxes.

eCommerce

Electronic commerce, Term for business transactions on the Internet.

Email

The transmission of computer-based messages over telecommunication technology.

Emoticon

Little smilies generated with the use of your keyboard to quickly add an emotional component to you message

e.gd:-) means that you are in a good mood (smiling face).

FA

Frequently asked questions - a section of a web site that automates the answering of popular visitor questions.

Freemail

Free, web-based email-service for registered users of an email-provider or tnternet portal, LYCOS offers

freemail and enhanced premium mail services.

Homepage

The main page of a web site.

Hosting

Hosting (also known as web site hosting and web hosting) is the business of housing, serving and maintaining

files for one or more websites.

Hyperlink

Also called an HTML link. Hyper linking is a navigation technigue in HTML that allows a user to jump from one

location (web page) to another. Hyperlinks can jump a user to different pages within a single web site or jump

users between different web sites. '

IFRS ,

Internationat Financial Reporting Standards.

Interstitial

An advertisement that loads between two content pages.

IP address

Internet proteco!l address - an IP address is a unique number that identifies your computer on a network (like

the Internet). This addressing system allows information to be delivered to and from other resources on a

network, such as between computers and web servers on the Internet.

Isp

Internet service provider - it provides the localized network infrastructure that allows access to the internet

through telephone lines (modems} or digital data communications technologies like ADSL or DSL. Commercial e
ISPs have a number of advantages, including fewer busy signals for dial-up service and local access numbers in I
different parts of the U.S. o
Log file : . e
File that records the activity on a web server. ;:r;
Netiquette T
Short for network etiquette, the code of conduct regarding acceptable ontine behavior,
Newsletter -
Periodically issued email for a group of registered users that are particularly interested in a distinctive topic or b
prefer just-in-time-updates via email over Individual online research. On monthly base, LYCOS sends out the £
LYCOS portal newsletter that either highlights new LYCOS services or a distinctive topic. e
Newsletter advertising is highly appreciated, due to targeted delivery among loyal users and tailor-made ad

forms.

Page view .
Request to load a single HTML page. m
Page impression

M

A single display of a website, regardless how often the same user is counted or how lonﬁm on the
site. he Appendix pertelning to the letter of
Pop-under (ad)

An ag that displays in a new browser window behind the current browser window. ' 5 FEB m Z:
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Pop-up (ad)
An ad that displays in a new browser window, Due to new browser software including “pop-up blockers” this
advertising format mostly disappeared in favour of other formats such as “content ads”.

Portal

A site featuring a suite of commonly used services, serving as a starting point and frequent gateway to the web
{web portal) or a niche topic (vertical portal).

Reach

Percentage of users who visit a specific web site on a regular basts compared to the total number of users in a
market.

Rich media

New media that offers an enhanced experience relative to older, mainstream formats.

Search engine

A program that indexes documents, then attempts to match documents relevant to the users search requests.
Server

Computers or workstations on a network that handle requests from other computers, or clients, serving them
stored data and files or processing power e.g. web servers, mail servers, and file servers.

SMS

Short messaging service - that facilitates written communication among cell phones or between cell phones and
online computers. LYCOS SMS and Mobile offers value-for-money SMS packages and a broad range of related
mobile tools and services.

Spam

{inappropriate commercial message of extremely low value.

Toolbar

A row of icons on a computer screen, especially in a web browser window that conveniently activate commands
or functions when clicked. Toolbars are “oniine customer retention” tools,

Traffic

The number of visitors a web site receives, The standard timelines for measuring web site traffic are daily,
weekly, monthly and yearly.

Unique user

Individual who has visited a web site (or netwark) at least once during a fixed time frame.

URL

Uniform resource locator - it specifies the location of a resource on the Internet. URLs consist of the access
protocol (http), the domain name (www.lycos-europe.com) and optionaily the path to a file or resource
residing on that server {investor relations}.

US-GAAP

United States Generally Accepted Accounting Principles.

vDS

Virtual Dedicated Server (VDS) Technology s a new technology based on the concept of partitions on
mainframes and advanced resource scheduling to divide a computer into many virtually isolated servers. A VD3
simply put is a server that runs inside another server. Each VDS acts like a dedicated server but shares the
same hardware,

Visit

Time span during which a unique visitor stays within the different pages of your site.

Web browser

A software application that allows for the browsing of the World Wide Web.

Web hosting

The business of providing the storage, connectivity and services necessary to serve files for a web site. oo
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Financial Calendar

Aprit 24, 2007 Interim report for the first three months of 2007
May 24, 2007 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders / Amsterdam, the Netherlands
July 31, 2007 Interim report for the first six months of 2007
October 23, 2007 Interim report for the first nine months of 2007
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LYCOS Europe N.V.
Richard Holkade 36
2033 PZ Haarlem
Netherlands

Concept and Production
.YCOS Europe, Corporate Communications

Financial information
LYCOS Europe, Corporate Controlling

Investor Relations

Phone: +49 (0)52 41 /807 1000

Fax: +49 (0)52 41 7 80 67 10 50

Email: investor.relations@lycos-europe.com
Web: www.lycos-europe.com

The annual report for the year ended December 31, 2006, 1s also available in German and French. In case of
doubt, the English version Is decisive.
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